

Report of the Security Council for 2024

General Assembly Official Records Seventy-ninth Session Supplement No. 2





Official Records Seventy-ninth Session Supplement No. 2

Report of the Security Council for 2024



Note

Symbols of United Nations documents are composed of letters combined with figures. Mention of such a symbol indicates a reference to a United Nations document.

The resolutions and decisions of the Security Council are published in yearly volumes of *Resolutions and Decisions of the Security Council*.

Contents

Chapter	
	Introduction
	ating to all questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the of international peace and security
1.	Resolutions adopted by the Security Council
2.	Statements by the President of the Security Council
3.	Communications between the President of the Security Council and the Secretary-General
4.	Meetings of the Security Council
5.	Meetings of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council.
6.	Reports of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council.
	A. Military Staff Committee
	B. Annual reports of committees
	C. Annual reports of working groups
7.	Reports of panels and monitoring mechanisms
8.	Security Council missions
9.	Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated
10.	Special political missions established, functioning or terminated
11.	Reports of the Secretary-General
12.	Special reports on the use of the veto.
13.	Summary statements by the Secretary-General of matters of which the Security Council was seized
14.	Notes by the President of the Security Council
15.	Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council
	nsidered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of peace and security
1.	The situation in Cyprus
2.	Items relating to the situation in the Middle East
	A. The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
	B. The situation in the Middle East
	1. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
	2. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

24-17684 3/210

	3. Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East				
	(a) Syrian Arab Republic				
	(b) Yemen				
3.	The situation concerning Western Sahara				
4.	United Nations peacekeeping operations				
5.	The situation in Somalia				
6.	Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia				
	A. The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina				
	B. Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)				
7.	The question concerning Haiti				
8.	The situation in Afghanistan				
9.	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals				
10.	The situation in the Great Lakes region				
11.	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo				
12.	The situation in the Central African Republic				
13.	Children and armed conflict				
14.	Protection of civilians in armed conflict				
15.	General issues relating to sanctions				
16.	Women and peace and security				
17.	Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice				
18.	Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees				
19.	Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation				
20	in Europe				
20.	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B				
	A. United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus				
	B. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force				
	C. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon				
	D. United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara				
	E. United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo				
	F. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic				
	G. United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei				
	H. United Nations Mission in South Sudan				
21.	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts				

22.	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council					
23.	Central African region.					
24.	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction					
25.	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan					
26.	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace					
27.	The situation concerning Iraq					
28.	Threats to international peace and security					
29.	Non-proliferation					
30.	Pea	ce consolidation in West Africa				
31.	The	situation in Myanmar				
32.	Nor	n-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea				
33.	Maintenance of international peace and security					
	A.	General issues				
	B.	Cybersecurity				
	C.	Impact of climate change and food insecurity.				
	D.	Nuclear disarmament and non-proliferation				
	E.	The role of young persons in addressing security challenges in the Mediterranean				
	F. Strengthening the role of the African State in addressing global security and development challenges					
	G.	The role of women and young people				
	Н.	Multilateral cooperation in the interest of a more just, democratic and sustainable world order.				
	I.	Addressing the historical injustice and enhancing Africa's effective representation on the Security Council				
	J.	Leadership for peace: united in respect of the Charter of the United Nations, in search of a secure future				
	K.	Anticipating the impact of scientific developments on international peace and security				
	L.	Artificial intelligence				
34.	Pea	ce and security in Africa				
35.	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security					
36.	The situation in Libya					
37.	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine					
38.	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)					
39						

24-17684 5/210

Part III Other n		rs considered by the Security Council	
	1.	Annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly	17
	2.	Admission of new members	17
	3.	Items relating to Security Council documentation and working methods and procedure	17
		A. Implementation of note by the President of the Security Council (S/2017/507)	17
		B. General matters	17
Part IV			
Report	of the	e Military Staff Committee	17
		ight to the attention of the Security Council but not discussed at meetings of the Council eriod covered	
	1.	Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question	17
	2.	Communications concerning the question of the Greater Tunb, Lesser Tunb and Abu Musa islands	17
	3.	The situation between Iraq and Kuwait	17
	4.	Communications concerning the situation relating to the letter dated 13 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Armenia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/688)	18
	5.	Communications concerning the situation in Georgia	18
	6.	Communications concerning relations between Cameroon and Nigeria	18
	7.	Communications concerning the situation in Sierra Leone	18
	8.	Communications concerning the situation in Guinea-Bissau	18
	9.	Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)	18
	10.	Communications concerning the situation in Mali	18
	11.	Communications concerning the International Criminal Court	18
	12.	Communications concerning the Collective Security Treaty Organization	18
	13.	Communications concerning the League of Arab States	18
	14.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Israel	18
	15.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Iraq	18
	16.	Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and the United States of America	18
	17.	Communications concerning relations between Cuba and the United States of America	18
	18.	Communications concerning relations between Guyana and the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela	18
	19.	Communications concerning the International Court of Justice	18
	20.	Communications concerning relations between Ethiopia and Somalia	18
	21.	Communications concerning relations between the Sudan and the United Arab Emirates	18
	22.	Communications concerning bilateral relations	19

23.	Communications concerning the Commonwealth of Independent States	190
24.	Communications concerning BRICS	191
Appendices		
I.	Membership of the Security Council during the year 2024	192
II.	Representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives accredited to the Security Council.	193
III.	Presidents of the Security Council	209

24-17684 7/210

Introduction

Mindful of its primary responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security, the Security Council continued to engage on a wide-reaching agenda in accordance with the principles and objectives set forth in the Charter of the United Nations. During the period 1 January to 31 December 2024, the Council held a total of 305 formal meetings, including 285 public meetings and 20 private meetings. The Council also convened 124 closed consultations and two informal interactive dialogues. Council members continued the practice of holding wrap-in and wrap-up sessions at the beginning and end of their respective presidencies, to increase transparency and accountability.

A total of 77 unscheduled formal meetings (25 per cent of the total number of formal meetings) and 53 unscheduled closed consultations (43 per cent of the total number of closed consultations) were held at the request of Council members. The Council spent a total of 711 hours in both formal and informal meetings in 2024, compared with 702.6 hours in 2023.

The Council considered 45 items throughout the year, of which 23 addressed country-specific or regional situations and 22 addressed thematic and other issues. It exchanged views on regional conflicts and crises; threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts; issues related to non-proliferation, peacekeeping and peacebuilding, sanctions, and cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations; and cross-cutting issues. The Council continued to maintain its attention on the humanitarian consequences of the conflicts of which it is seized and their impact on civilians and children, as well as on the role of women in preventing and resolving conflict. It also held a meeting and closed consultations on the admission of a new member.

The Council extended a total of 464 invitations under rule 39, of which 235 were to men (50.6 per cent) and 229 were to women (49.4 per cent). Of those invitations, 277 were extended to officials from the United Nations system (136 to men (49.1 per cent) and 141 to women (50.9 per cent)), 61 to officials representing regional intergovernmental organizations, 18 to representatives of international organizations other than the United Nations and 108 to representatives of other entities, such as non-governmental organizations and civil society (41 to men (37 per cent) and 67 to women (62 per cent)).

During the reporting period, the Council adopted 46 resolutions and seven presidential statements. The Council also issued 43 statements to the press, which represented a 27 per cent increase from 2023. However, there was a decrease in the number of outcome documents and the number of unanimously adopted resolutions (30 out of 46 resolutions (65 per cent)) compared with the previous year.

At the same time, many Member States expressed concern that challenging political dynamics and divisions were affecting the Council's ability to fully fulfil its responsibilities as established in the Charter of the United Nations. Bridging gaps and striving for consensus became more crucial than ever. Throughout the year, the Middle East remained the most frequently discussed item in open and closed discussions, mainly the Palestinian question and Lebanon, followed by Ukraine and the Sudan. The Council adopted decisions regarding seven peacekeeping operations and eight special political missions, including by approving the recommendations of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (UNOCA) and the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (UNOWAS). The Council also renewed the mandates of 10 sanctions committees.

On eight occasions, procedural matters were put to a vote. On four occasions, draft resolutions or amendments were not adopted owing to an insufficient number of

votes. On seven occasions, draft resolutions were not adopted owing to the casting of a veto by one or more permanent members: one on non-proliferation, one on the sanctions on the Democratic People's Republic of Korea, four on the Middle East and one on the Sudan. The Council therefore submitted a total of seven special reports to the General Assembly, pursuant to resolution 76/262.

In October, the Security Council and the Peace and Security Council of the African Union held their eighteenth annual joint consultative meeting in New York.

Further information on the work of the Security Council and more detailed reports of its meetings can be found in the monthly assessments of its work. The goal of the present introduction is not to provide an exhaustive list of meetings, developments or responses of the Council. Rather, it is intended as a succinct and useful overview of key developments made throughout the year. The introduction also aims to take into account remarks made by Member States at the plenary meeting of the General Assembly on the annual report of the Council for 2023 (A/78/2) on 25 June 2024, as well as the informal consultation on the annual report of the Council for 2024, convened by the President of the General Assembly on 16 January 2025.

Africa

Central African region

The Council held its regular biannual briefings and consultations on the Central African region. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Central Africa and Head of UNOCA, Abdou Abarry; the President of the Commission of the Economic Community of Central African States, Gilberto Da Piedade Verissimo; and a representative of civil society. Council members exchanged views on the situation in the subregion, in particular in view of the current threats to peace and stability.

On 30 August, the Council approved the recommendation of the Secretary-General to renew the mandate of UNOCA for three years, until 31 August 2027.

On 1 November, the Council adopted a presidential statement (S/PRST/2024/7) on the activities of UNOCA and the security, political and humanitarian situation in the Central African region.

Central African Republic

The Council held its regular triannual briefings and consultations on the situation in the Central African Republic. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for the Central African Republic and Head of the United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA), Valentine Rugwabiza. The Chair of the Central African Republic country-specific configuration of the United Nations Peacebuilding Commission and a representative of civil society also briefed the Council.

The Council issued a press statement on 16 January in which the members of the Council condemned in the strongest terms the attack perpetrated on 15 January against MINUSCA through an explosive device, following which one peacekeeper from Cameroon was killed and five wounded.

On 30 July, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2745 (2024), lifting the arms embargo on the Central African Republic. In the resolution, the Council also renewed the targeted sanctions and arms embargo on armed groups until 31 July 2025

9/210

and extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts (which was established pursuant to resolution 2127 (2013)) until 31 August 2025.

On 14 November, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2759 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of MINUSCA until 15 November 2025.

Democratic Republic of the Congo

In addition to its regular quarterly briefings and consultations, the Council also met at the request of its members to discuss the situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General in the Democratic Republic of the Congo and Head of the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO), Bintou Keita; the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations, Jean-Pierre Lacroix; the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa, Martha Ama Akyaa Pobee; and representatives of civil society.

The Council issued statements to the press on 5 April, 20 June and 25 October in which the members of the Council strongly condemned the attacks by the Mouvement du 23 mars and the attack on the internally displaced persons camp in Mugunga on 3 May. The members of the Council also expressed their support for ongoing mediation efforts through the Luanda process, led by Angola, and urged all parties to abide by the ceasefire agreement signed by the Democratic Republic of the Congo and Rwanda on 30 July.

On 27 June, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2738 (2024), by which it renewed the sanctions regime concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo until 1 July 2025 and extended the mandate of the Group of Experts until 1 August 2025.

On 6 August, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2746 (2024), by which it authorized MONUSCO to provide limited operational, technical and logistical assistance to the Southern African Development Community Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo.

On 20 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2765 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of MONUSCO until 20 December 2025 and requested further reporting on the Mission's disengagement process.

Great Lakes region

The Council held its regular biannual briefings and consultations on the situation in the Great Lakes region. Briefings were delivered by the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for the Great Lakes Region, Huang Xia; the Assistant Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Deputy Emergency Relief Coordinator, Joyce Msuya; and representatives of civil society. Council members called for further efforts to address security challenges, promote inter-State dialogue and support regional peace initiatives.

Libya

The Council continued to follow closely the situation in Libya. The Council held its regular bimonthly briefings and consultations. Briefings were provided by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Libya and Head of the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL), Abdoulaye Bathily (following his departure in May 2024, the interim leadership of UNSMIL continued to update the Council); and by members of civil society. The Permanent Representative of Japan,

Yamazaki Kazuyuki, also briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya.

The Council also held its biannual briefings on the investigations of the International Criminal Court in Libya pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011).

The Council issued a press statement on 27 February in which the members of the Council reaffirmed their commitment to an inclusive, Libyan-led and Libyan-owned political process, facilitated by the United Nations, and reiterated their support for UNSMIL efforts to facilitate national presidential and parliamentary elections.

Following the departure of the Special Representative, the Council issued a press statement on 6 May in which it expressed its gratitude for his efforts and called for the appointment of his successor as soon as possible. In its statement, the Council reiterated its continued support for UNSMIL and its leadership and the importance for the interim leadership UNSMIL to continue to implement the UNSMIL mandate and ensure a smooth transition for a new Special Representative. On 28 August, the Council issued a press statement in which it called for a consensus-based solution to the crisis regarding the Central Bank of Libya. On 9 October, the Council issued another press statement in which it welcomed the agreement reached on the issue and commended the efforts of UNSMIL for its constructive role in facilitating the agreement. The Council called on Libyan actors and institutions to refrain from and address unilateral actions.

On 31 May, by 9 votes in favour, none against and 6 abstentions, the Council adopted a resolution 2733 (2024), by which it extended the authorizations as set out in resolution 2684 (2023) for a further 12 months and amended the authorizations under resolution 2292 (2016). Under the new terms, Member States are authorized to seize and dispose of (through destruction or rendering inoperable) of items violating the Libyan arms embargo and to notify the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) within 30 days of disposal. Disposal through storage or transfer to another State other than the originating or destination States now requires approval by the Committee.

On 31 October, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2755 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of UNSMIL until 31 January 2025, with an automatic nine-month extension contingent upon the appointment of a new Special Representative and Head of UNSMIL by that date.

Somalia

In addition to its regular triannual briefings and consultations, the Council also held a private meeting on the situation in Somalia. On 14 May, the Secretary-General appointed James Swan as his Acting Special Representative for Somalia and Head of the United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia, succeeding Catriona Laing. The Council heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Somalia; the Acting Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Somalia; the African Union High Representative for the Peace Fund, Donald Kaberuka; the Special Representative of the Chairperson of the African Union Commission for Somalia and Head of the African Union Transition Mission in Somalia (ATMIS), Mohammed El-Amine Souef; and the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa. In addition, the Permanent Representative of Japan, in his capacity as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023), provided a briefing to the Council.

On 28 June, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2741 (2024), by which it extended its authorizations for ATMIS until 12 August 2024. On 12 August, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2747 (2024), further extending its authorizations for ATMIS until 15 August 2024. On 15 August, the Council

24-17684 11/210

unanimously adopted resolution 2748 (2024), by which it further extended its authorizations for ATMIS until 31 December 2024 and requested the Secretary-General, jointly with the African Union Commission Chairperson and in consultation with Somalia and international stakeholders, to report on the overall mission design for the proposed successor mission to ATMIS, including a range of options for financing it.

On 30 October, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2753 (2024), by which it decided to change the name of the United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia to the United Nations Transitional Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNTMIS) and that UNTMIS should prioritize certain functions while simultaneously transferring, in a progressive and phased manner, other functions to the Federal Government of Somalia, the United Nations country team and other stakeholders. The Council also expressed its intention, informed by conditions on the ground, to terminate the UNTMIS mandate by 31 October 2026, at the end of the anticipated two-phased transition.

On 13 December, under the agenda item entitled "Peace and security in Africa", the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2762 (2024), by which it authorized Member States to inspect vessels bound to or from Somalia which they have reasonable grounds to believe are transporting charcoal, weapons or military equipment, or improvised explosive device components in violation of the charcoal ban, arms embargo or improvised explosive device components ban, until 28 February 2025; and by which it renewed until 31 March 2025 the mandate of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023).

On 27 December, the Council adopted resolution 2767 (2024) by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention. In the resolution, the Council endorsed the replacement of ATMIS with the African Union Support and Stabilization Mission in Somalia (AUSSOM) from 1 January 2025; expressed its intent to authorize the continued deployment of uniformed personnel by Member States of the African Union to Somalia; and requested the Secretary-General to carry out the hybrid implementation of the framework established by resolution 2719 (2023) for AUSSOM from 1 July 2025, if the Council confirms that request through a further decision in May 2025.

South Sudan

The Council held its regular briefings and consultations on the situation in South Sudan. Briefings were delivered by the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations; the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for South Sudan and Head of the United Nations Mission in South Sudan (UNMISS), Nicholas Haysom; the Chair of the reconstituted Joint Monitoring and Evaluation Commission, Major General Charles Tai Gituai; and representatives of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs and civil society. The Permanent Representative of Sierra Leone, Michael Imran Kanu, also briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015).

On 14 March, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2726 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of UNMISS until 30 April 2024.

On 29 April, the Council adopted resolution 2729 (2024), by 13 votes in favour, none against and 2 abstentions, by which it extended the mandate of UNMISS until 30 April 2025.

On 30 May, the Council adopted resolution 2731 (2024), by 9 votes in favour, none against and 6 abstentions, by which the Council renewed the sanctions measures

concerning South Sudan until 31 May 2025 and extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts on South Sudan until 1 July 2025.

Sudan

The Council closely monitored the situation in the Sudan and held regular briefings and consultations on the situation in the Sudan, including briefings in March, June and October on the implementation of resolution 2715 (2023). The Council also met on numerous occasions at the request of its members to discuss the reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan, including with regard to de-escalatory measures, the humanitarian situation and the protection of civilians. The meetings included a high-level briefing on 19 December. Briefings were delivered by the Secretary-General; the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, Rosemary DiCarlo; the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator, Martin Griffiths; the Personal Envoy of the Secretary-General for the Sudan, Ramtane Lamamra; the Chair of the African Union High-level Panel on the Sudan, Mohamed Ibn Chambas; the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa; and representatives from the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, the World Food Programme and civil society. The Permanent Representative of the Republic of Korea, Joonkook Hwang, also briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005).

The Council also held its biannual briefings on the International Criminal Court.

The Council issued press statements on 27 April and 12 July, in which members of the Council expressed deep concern over the ongoing violence in the Sudan, including attacks on the civilian population and the deteriorating humanitarian situation.

On 8 March, the Council adopted resolution 2724 (2024) by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention, by which it called for the immediate cessation of hostilities by the Sudanese warring parties during Ramadan. On the same day, the Council adopted resolution 2725 (2024) by 13 votes in favour, none against and 2 abstentions, by which it extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts on the Sudan until 12 March 2025.

On 13 June, the Council adopted resolution 2736 (2024) by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention, by which it demanded that the Rapid Support Forces halt the siege of El Fasher and that the parties to the conflict ensure the protection of civilians. On 11 September, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2750 (2024), by which it renewed the existing sanctions measures concerning Darfur until 12 September 2025.

On 18 November, the Council considered a draft resolution on the protection of civilians in the Sudan and the implementation of the Jeddah Declaration of Commitment to Protect the Civilians of the Sudan. It received 14 votes in favour and 1 vote against. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative vote of a permanent member of the Council. Following the casting of the veto, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

Sudan, South Sudan and Abyei

The Council continued to lend its support to the United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA) as an essential tool for the stability of the border regions between the Sudan and South Sudan, as well as in the Abyei Administrative Area.

24-17684 13/210

The Council held its biannual briefings on the reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan with regard to Abyei. In May and November, briefings were delivered by the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations; the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for the Horn of Africa, Hanna Serwaa Tetteh; and the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa.

On 8 February, the Council issued a press statement on the death of peacekeepers in Abyei.

On 14 November, by its resolution 2760 (2024), adopted by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention, the Council extended the mandate of UNISFA, including the Joint Border Verification and Monitoring Mechanism, until 15 November 2025. In the resolution, the Council also requested the Secretary-General to provide a strategic review of UNISFA no later than 15 August 2025.

Western Sahara

The Council continued to hold biannual consultations on the situation in Western Sahara and was briefed by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Western Sahara and Head of the United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO), Alexander Ivanko; and the Personal Envoy of the Secretary-General for Western Sahara, Staffan de Mistura. Members of the Council reaffirmed the objective of a just, lasting and mutually acceptable political solution for both Morocco and the Frente Popular para la Liberación de Saguía el-Hamra y de Río de Oro that would provide conditions for the self-determination of the people of Western Sahara.

In that context, on 31 October, the Council adopted resolution 2756 (2024) by 12 votes in favour, none against and 2 abstentions. One member did not participate in the vote. By that resolution, the Council extended the mandate of MINURSO until 31 October 2025.

Peace consolidation in West Africa

The Council held its regular briefings and consultations on peace consolidation in West Africa. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for West Africa and the Sahel and Head of UNOWAS, Leonardo Santos Simão. Council members expressed their concern over the worsening security situation in the region, including terrorist threats and heightened political tensions, which were leading to destabilization and displacement.

On 24 May, the Council adopted a presidential statement (S/PRST/2024/3) in which it expressed its full support for the efforts of the Special Representative of the Secretary-General in carrying out the mandate of UNOWAS and addressed various security, political and humanitarian challenges.

The Council issued a press statement on 5 January, in which it took note of the closing of the United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in Mali (MINUSMA) on 31 December 2023 and commended the meaningful efforts of the MINUSMA leadership and personnel to implement the Mission's mandate.

Peace and security in Africa

On 13 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2762 (2024), by which it authorized Member States to intercept vessels transporting banned items to and from Somalia, including illegal arms imports and charcoal exports, until 28 February 2025; and renewed the mandate of the Panel of Experts until 31 March 2025.

Americas

Colombia

The Council held its regular quarterly briefings and consultations on Colombia. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Colombia and Head of the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia, Carlos Ruiz Massieu; the representative of the high contracting party to the Commission for the Follow-Up, Promotion and Verification of the Implementation of the Final Agreement, Diego Tovar; the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission; and representatives of civil society.

In four statements issued to the press, on 18 January, 15 April, 18 July and 21 October, the Council reiterated its full and unanimous support for the peace process in Colombia and stressed the importance of ensuring the comprehensive implementation of the 2016 Final Agreement for Ending the Conflict and Building a Stable and Lasting Peace.

The Council continued to support the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia. On 30 October, it unanimously adopted resolution 2754 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of the Mission for one year, until 31 October 2025.

In February, the Council conducted a visit to Colombia, which allowed its members to gain first-hand perspectives on the progress made in the peace process from various government, civil society and United Nations stakeholders, as well as to reconfirm the Council's full support therefor.

Haiti

In 2024, the Council continued to follow closely the situation in Haiti. The Council met 12 times to discuss the situation in Haiti, including for its quarterly briefings and consultations and for a briefing on Haiti sanctions, as well as additional meetings and consultations at the request of Council members. The Council heard briefings by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General and Head of the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (BINUH), María Isabel Salvador; the Assistant Secretary-General for Europe, Central Asia and the Americas in the Departments of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and Peace Operations, Miroslav Jenča; the Executive Director of the United Nations Office on Drugs and Crime, Ghada Fathi Waly; the Executive Director of the United Nations Children's Fund (UNICEF), Catherine Russell; and representatives of civil society. The Permanent Representative of Guyana, Carolyn Rodrigues-Birkett, also briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022).

On 12 July, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2743 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of BINUH for one year, until 15 July 2025. On 30 September, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2751 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of the Multinational Security Support Mission to Haiti for one year, until 2 October 2025. On 18 October, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2752 (2024), by which it renewed the sanctions regime until 18 October 2025 and extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts until 18 November 2025.

In three statements issued to the press, on 11 March, 21 March and 23 December, the members of the Council reiterated their deep concern over the ongoing and deteriorating crisis in Haiti and reaffirmed the commitment of the international community to supporting the people of Haiti.

In a letter dated 29 November 2024 from the President of the Security Council addressed to the Secretary-General, the members of the Council requested a

24-17684 15/210

comprehensive assessment of the current Haiti context and ongoing United Nations and international community efforts, together with strategic-level recommendations with a full range of options for the possible role the United Nations could play in that regard.

Asia

Afghanistan

The Council continued to monitor closely the latest developments in Afghanistan. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Afghanistan and Head of the United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA), Roza Otunbayeva; the Executive Director of the United Nations Entity for Gender Equality and the Empowerment of Women (UN-Women), Sima Bahous; the Emergency Relief Coordinator; and representatives from the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs and civil society.

The Council issued statements to the press on 22 March and 5 September in which the members of the Council condemned in the strongest terms the terrorist attacks, as claimed by Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh)-Khorasan. It also issued a press statement on 27 December in which the members of the Council recognized the continued need to address multifaceted challenges in Afghanistan, including those related to humanitarian, economic and social issues; development; security and terrorism; narcotics; dialogue and engagement; governance and the rule of law; and human rights, in particular, the rights of women and girls and persons belonging to religious and ethnic minority groups.

On 15 March, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2727 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of UNAMA until 17 March 2025. On 13 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2763 (2024), by which it decided that the Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team would continue to support the Committee established by resolution 1988 (2011) for a period of 14 months.

Democratic People's Republic of Korea

On 12 June, at the request of its members, the Council held a briefing to discuss the situation in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea. The Council heard briefings by the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights, Volker Türk; the Special Rapporteur on the situation of human rights in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea, Elizabeth Salmón; and a representative of civil society. Various Council members expressed concern over the deteriorating humanitarian and human rights situation in the country, underlining that it is intertwined with the issue of nuclear proliferation. Some members expressed concern over the misuse of the human rights agenda against a sovereign State in the Council.

Myanmar

At the request of its members, the Council held a briefing, private meetings and consultations on the situation in Myanmar. The Council heard briefings by the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General on Myanmar, Julie Bishop; the Special Envoy of the Chair of the Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN) on Myanmar, Alounkeo Kittikhoun; the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific in the Departments of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and Peace Operations, Khaled Mohamed Khiari; and the Director of the Financing and Partnerships Division of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, Lisa Doughten.

Council members discussed how the United Nations could best support ASEAN in the implementation of the ASEAN five-point consensus.

United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia

The Council held its regular biannual consultations on the United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Central Asia and Head of the Regional Centre, Kaha Imnadze, briefed the Council. Council members emphasized the importance of close coordination between the Central Asian States in ensuring peace, stability and sustainable development in the region.

Europe

Bosnia and Herzegovina

In addition to its regular biannual debates, the Council also held a briefing and consultations at the request of its members to discuss the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina. On 1 November, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2757 (2024), by which it authorized a multinational stabilization force (EUFOR-Althea) for a further period of 12 months.

Cyprus

The Council held regular biannual consultations to discuss the situation in Cyprus. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General and Head of the United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP), Colin Stewart, briefed the Council.

On 30 January, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2723 (2024), by which it extended the mandate of UNFICYP until 31 January 2025.

Kosovo

In addition to its regular biannual briefings under the agenda item entitled "Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)", the Council held an additional briefing at the request of Serbia and Council members to discuss the situation in Kosovo. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General and Head of the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo, Caroline Ziadeh, briefed the Council. Council members expressed concern over the deteriorating security situation and urged de-escalation and a return to dialogue.

Ukraine

During the reporting period, the Council met 33 times to discuss various aspects of the conflict in Ukraine under different agenda items. The meetings included a high-level briefing on 23 February; a high-level briefing on 24 September, chaired by the Prime Minister of Slovenia, Robert Golob; and a high-level briefing on 18 November, chaired by the Secretary of State for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Affairs of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, David Lammy. Following a private meeting on 25 January, the Council issued an official communiqué (see S/PV.9536).

Briefings were delivered by the Secretary-General; the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs; the Director General of the International Atomic Energy Agency, Rafael Mariano Grossi; the Executive Director

24-17684 17/210

of UNICEF; the High Representative for Disarmament Affairs, Izumi Nakamitsu; the Assistant Secretary-General for Europe, Central Asia and the Americas in the Departments of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and Peace Operations; the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific in the Departments of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and Peace Operations; the Assistant Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Deputy Emergency Relief Coordinator; the Deputy to the High Representative for Disarmament Affairs, Adedeji Ebo; the Director of the Operations and Advocacy Division of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, Edem Wosornu; the Director of the Financing and Partnerships Division of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs; a representative of the Office for Disarmament Affairs, Ivor Fung; and representatives of civil society.

Middle East

Iraq

The Council held its regular triannual briefings and consultations on the situation concerning Iraq. The outgoing and incoming Special Representatives of the Secretary-General for Iraq and Heads of the United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI), Jeanine Hennis-Plasschaert and Mohamed Al Hassan, and representatives of civil society briefed the Council.

On 31 May, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2732 (2024), extending the mandate of UNAMI for a final 19-month period, until 31 December 2025.

On 5 June, the Council held its final briefing by the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (UNITAD) before the conclusion of the Team's mandate, as extended by resolution 2697 (2023) until 17 September 2024. The acting Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant, Ana Peyró Llopis, briefed the Council.

Lebanon

The Council held its regular biannual consultations on the report pursuant to resolution 1559 (2004), its regular triannual consultations on the report pursuant to resolution 1701 (2006), and its annual consultations on the United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL). In addition to its regular meetings, the Council also met at the request of its members to discuss the situation in Lebanon. Briefings were delivered by the Secretary-General of the United Nations; the outgoing and the incoming Special Coordinators for Lebanon, Joanna Wronecka and Jeanine Hennis-Plasschaert; the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs; the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations; the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights; and the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific.

On 28 August, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2749 (2024), extending the mandate of UNIFIL until 31 August 2025.

On 14 October, press elements were read out by the President of the Council expressing concern over incidents that impacted UNIFIL positions and reiterating support for UNIFIL.

On 13 November, the Council issued a statement to the press condemning several incidents that affected UNIFIL positions and injured UNIFIL peacekeepers

and urging all parties to take all measures to respect the safety and security of UNIFIL personnel and premises.

Syrian Arab Republic

Under the item "The situation in the Middle East", the Council met regularly to discuss the three aspects of the Syrian crisis. Briefings were delivered by the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Syria, Geir Pedersen; the Deputy Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Syria, Najat Rochdi; the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator; the Under-Secretary-General and High Representative for Disarmament Affairs; and representatives of civil society.

On 17 December, the Council issued a statement to the press calling for the implementation of an inclusive and Syrian-led and Syrian-owned political process based on the key principles listed in resolution 2254 (2015) and facilitated by the United Nations and reaffirming its strong commitment to the sovereignty, independence, unity and territorial integrity of the Syrian Arab Republic. The Council underscored the importance of combating terrorism in the Syrian Arab Republic and also recalled all parties' obligations under relevant Security Council resolutions related to countering terrorism, in particular resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) and related to the situation in Syria.

The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

In addition to its regular monthly meetings, the Council also met at the request of its members to discuss the situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question, as well as the implementation of resolution 2334 (2016). The meetings convened by the Council included a number of high-level meetings: an open debate on 23 January chaired by the Minister for Europe and Foreign Affairs of France, Catherine Colonna; an open debate on 18 April chaired by the Minister for Foreign and European Affairs and Trade of Malta, Ian Borg; an open debate on 17 July chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation, Sergey Lavrov; an open debate on 29 October chaired by the Head of the Federal Department for Foreign Affairs of Switzerland, Ignazio Cassis; a briefing on the Middle East/Lebanon on 25 September chaired by the Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Foreign and European Affairs of Slovenia, Tanja Fajon; a briefing on 27 September chaired by the Prime Minister of Slovenia, Robert Golob; and a briefing on 18 November chaired by the Secretary of State for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Affairs of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, David Lammy; as well as a high-level informal interactive dialogue on cooperation between the Council and the League of Arab States on 26 September, chaired by the Deputy Prime Minister and Minister for Foreign and European Affairs of Slovenia, Tanja Fajon.

Briefings were delivered by the Secretary-General; the Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peace Process, Tor Wennesland; the Commissioner-General of the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near East (UNRWA), Philippe Lazzarini; the Director-General of the World Health Organization, Tedros Adhanom Ghebreyesus; the Deputy Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peace Process, Lynn Hastings; the Deputy Commissioner-General of United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near East, Leni Stenseth; the Head of Mission and Chief of Staff of the United Nations Truce Supervision Organization (UNTSO), Major General Patrick Gauchat; the Senior Humanitarian and Reconstruction Coordinator for Gaza, Sigrid Kaag, the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator; the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, the Assistant

24-17684 **19/210**

Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific; the Executive Director of UNICEF; the Executive Director of UN-Women; and representatives of civil society.

On 20 February, the Council considered a draft resolution on the conflict and humanitarian crisis in Gaza, authored by Algeria. The draft resolution received 13 votes in favour, 1 against and 1 abstention. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative vote of a permanent member of the Council. Following the casting of the veto, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

On 22 March, the Council considered a draft resolution on the conflict and humanitarian crisis in Gaza, authored by the United States of America. The draft resolution received 11 votes in favour, 3 against and 1 abstention. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative votes of permanent members of the Council. Following the casting of the vetoes, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

On 25 March, the Council considered a draft resolution on the conflict and humanitarian crisis in Gaza, authored by Algeria, Ecuador, Guyana, Japan, Malta, Mozambique, Republic of Korea, Sierra Leone, Slovenia and Switzerland. Ahead of the vote on the draft resolution, the Council considered an amendment proposed orally by the Russian Federation. The amendment received 3 votes in favour, 1 against and 11 abstentions. The amendment was not adopted, having failed to obtain the required number of votes. The Council subsequently adopted resolution 2728 (2024) by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention. In the resolution, the Council demanded an immediate ceasefire for the month of Ramadan respected by all parties, leading to a lasting sustainable ceasefire. It also demanded the immediate and unconditional release of all hostages, as well as ensuring humanitarian access to address their medical and other humanitarian needs.

On 18 April, the Council considered a draft resolution recommending to the General Assembly the admission of the State of Palestine as a member of the United Nations, authored by Algeria. The resolution received 12 votes in favour, 1 against and 2 abstentions. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative vote of a permanent member of the Council. Following the casting of the veto, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

On 10 June, the Council considered a draft resolution on the conflict and humanitarian crisis in Gaza, authored by the United States. The Council subsequently adopted resolution 2735 (2024) by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention.

On 20 November, the Council considered a draft resolution on the conflict and humanitarian crisis in Gaza, authored by Algeria, Ecuador, Guyana, Japan, Malta, Mozambique, Republic of Korea, Sierra Leone, Slovenia and Switzerland. The draft resolution received 14 votes in favour, 1 against and no abstentions. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative vote of a permanent member of the Council. Following the casting of the veto, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

The Council issued statements to the press on 2 March, following an incident concerning a humanitarian assistance convoy in Gaza; on 11 April, on humanitarian workers and the threat of famine in Gaza; on 10 May, on mass graves in Gaza; and on 30 October, on the United Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in Near East (UNRWA).

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

In addition to its regular quarterly consultations, the Council also met at the request of its members to discuss the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF). Briefings were delivered by the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations; the Special Envoy for Syria; the Assistant Secretary-General for Europe, Central Asia and the Americas; the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific; and the Assistant Secretary-General for Rule of Law and Security Institutions, Alexandre Zouev.

On 27 June, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2737 (2024), renewing the mandate of UNDOF until 31 December 2024. On 20 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2766 (2024), renewing the mandate of UNDOF until 30 June 2025.

Yemen

In 2024, the Council maintained its active engagement with the situation in Yemen, holding monthly briefings and consultations to assess developments in the country. These sessions featured briefings by the Special Envoy of the Secretary-General for Yemen, Hans Grundberg; the Head of the United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA) and Chair of the Redeployment Coordination Committee, Major General Michael Beary; the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator, Martin Griffiths and subsequently Thomas Fletcher; the Assistant Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Deputy Emergency Relief Coordinator; the Director of the Operations and Advocacy Division of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs; the Director of the Financing and Partnerships Division of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs; and representatives of civil society. The Permanent Representative of the Republic of Korea to the United Nations, Joonkook Hwang, also briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014). Council members reiterated their support for a sustainable nationwide ceasefire and a Yemeni-led and Yemeni-owned political process under the auspices of the United Nations.

On 8 July, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2742 (2024), extending the mandate of UNMHA until 14 July 2025. On 13 November, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2758 (2024) by which it renewed the sanctions measures as set out in resolution 2140 (2014) until 15 November 2025 and extended the mandate of the Panel of Experts until 15 December 2025.

Thematic questions

Children and armed conflict

The Council held a briefing on 3 April and an open debate on 26 June to discuss children and armed conflict. Briefings were delivered by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General for Children and Armed Conflict, Virginia Gamba; the Deputy Executive Director for Humanitarian Action and Supply Operations of UNICEF, Ted Chaiban; and representatives of civil society, including the former Secretary-General of the United Nations and current Deputy Chair of The Elders, Ban Ki-moon. Council members expressed serious concern about the extreme levels of the six grave violations against children in armed conflict in 2023.

On 20 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2764 (2024), highlighting the need to facilitate adequate and sustainable child protection capacities

24-17684 **21/210**

in United Nations peace operations, including in the context of transitions to or from United Nations missions.

The Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict visited Colombia from 9 to 12 December on a field mission led by Malta, Chair of the Working Group. In 2024, the Working Group adopted conclusions on children and armed conflict in Afghanistan, the Central African Republic, Colombia, Iraq, Nigeria, the Philippines, Somalia and the Sudan.

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

On 12 March, the Council held a briefing on cooperation between the United Nations and the European Union. The High Representative of the European Union for Foreign Affairs and Security Policy, Josep Borrell Fontelles, briefed the Council.

On 19 April, the Council held a briefing on cooperation between the United Nations and the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe (OSCE). The Minister for Foreign and European Affairs and Trade of Malta and Chairperson-in-Office of OSCE, Ian Borg, briefed the Council.

On 19 July, the Council held a high-level debate on cooperation between the United Nations and the Collective Security Treaty Organization (CSTO), the Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) and the Shanghai Cooperation Organization. The meeting was chaired by the Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation, Sergey Vershinin. Briefings were delivered by the Assistant Secretary-General for Peacebuilding Support in the Department of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, Elizabeth Spehar; the Secretary-General of the Shanghai Cooperation Organization, Zhang Ming; the Secretary-General of CSTO, Imangali Tasmagambetov; and the Secretary-General of CIS, Sergey Lebedev.

On 2 October, the Council held a briefing on cooperation between the United Nations and the African Union. The Council was briefed by the Special Representative of the Secretary-General to the African Union, Parfait Onanga-Anyanga; the Permanent Observer of the African Union to the United Nations, Fatima Kyari Mohammed; and the Assistant Secretary-General for Africa.

On 18 October, the members of the Council and the members of the Peace and Security Council of the African Union held the eighteenth annual joint consultative meeting. A joint communiqué was adopted at the meeting.

International Court of Justice

On 22 October, a private meeting was held to hear a briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice, Judge Nawaf Salam.

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

The Council held its regular biannual debates on the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals. The President of the Mechanism, Judge Graciela Gatti Santana, and Prosecutor Serge Brammertz briefed the Council.

The Council conducted a periodic review of the Mechanism's work pursuant to resolution 1966 (2010). For that purpose, the Council adopted presidential statement S/PRST/2024/1 requesting the Mechanism to present its report on the progress of its work since the previous review in June 2022. The review process was concluded on 27 June 2024 with the adoption of resolution 2740 (2024) by 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention, whereby the Council reappointed Serge Brammertz as Prosecutor of the Mechanism, for a two-year term, with effect from 1 July 2024.

Maintenance of international peace and security

On 3 January, the Council was briefed by the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific and by the Secretary-General of the International Maritime Organization, Arsenio Dominguez, on threats to the security of commercial navigation in the Red Sea. Subsequently, on 10 January, the Council adopted resolution 2722 (2024) by a vote of 11 in favour, none against and 4 abstentions. In the resolution, the Council demanded that the Houthis cease attacks on merchant and commercial vessels and affirmed the navigational rights and freedoms of merchant and commercial vessels in accordance with international law. Moreover, the Council requested the Secretary-General to provide written monthly reports to the Council on the matter. On 27 June, the Council adopted resolution 2739 (2024) by 12 votes in favour, none against and 3 abstentions, through which it extended its reporting request until 15 January 2025. The Council also issued statements to the press on the situation in the Red Sea and the Bab al-Mandab strait and on the anniversary of the unlawful detention by the Houthis of the *Galaxy Leader* crew, on 18 March and 18 November, respectively.

On 13 February, the Council held a high-level open debate on the theme "The impact of climate change and food insecurity on the maintenance of international peace and security". The meeting was chaired by the President of Guyana, Mohamed Irfaan Ali. The Council was briefed by the Executive Secretary of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, Simon Stiell; the Deputy Director-General of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations (FAO), Beth Bechdol; and a representative of civil society

On 18 March, the Council held a ministerial briefing on nuclear disarmament and non-proliferation. The Council was briefed by the Secretary-General of the United Nations; the Executive Secretary of the Comprehensive Nuclear-Test-Ban Treaty Organization, Robert Floyd; and a representative of civil society.

On 17 April, the Council held a debate on the role of young persons in addressing security challenges in the Mediterranean. The meeting was chaired by the Minister for Foreign and European Affairs and Trade of Malta, Ian Borg. The Council was briefed by the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs; the Secretary-General of the Union for the Mediterranean, Nasser Kamel; and the Regional Lead for the Middle East and North Africa Coalition on Youth, Peace and Security, Sarra Messaoudi.

On 23 May, the Council convened an open debate on the theme "Strengthening the role of the African State in addressing global security and development challenges". The meeting began with the adoption of presidential statement S/PRST/2024/2, aimed at bolstering the role of African countries in global security and development. The Council was briefed by the Secretary-General; the Commissioner for Political Affairs, Peace and Security of the African Union, Bankole Adeoye; and the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission, Sérgio França Danese.

On 14 June, the Council convened a briefing on intolerance and hate speech as drivers of conflict, as mandated by Council resolution 2686 (2023). The Special Adviser of the Secretary-General on the Prevention of Genocide, Alice Wairimu Nderitu, briefed the Council, highlighting the efforts of United Nations missions to address the issue while expressing concerns about the rising trend of hate speech. Many Council members underscored the importance of protecting fundamental freedoms for all and promoting human rights while condemning all forms of violence, discrimination and hate speech.

On 20 June, the Council held a high-level open debate on the theme "Maintenance of international peace and security: addressing evolving threats in

24-17684 23/210

cyberspace". The meeting was chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Republic of Korea, Cho Tae-yul. The Secretary-General and representatives of civil society briefed the Council.

On 16 July, the Council held a high-level open debate on the theme "Multilateral cooperation in the interest of a more just, democratic and sustainable world order". The meeting was chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation Sergey Lavrov.

The Council met on 22 July in the wake of Houthi attacks on Tel Aviv, and on 30 December following Israeli air strikes on Yemen, hearing briefings from the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, the Head of the United Nations Mission to support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA) and Chair of the Redeployment Coordination Committee, and the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific.

On 12 August, the Council held a high-level debate on the theme "Maintenance of international peace and security: addressing the historical injustice and enhancing Africa's effective representation on the Security Council". The meeting was chaired by the President of Sierra Leone, Julius Maada Bio, and included a briefing by the Secretary-General.

On 25 September, the Council held a high-level open debate on the theme "Leadership for peace: United in respect of the Charter of the United Nations, in search of a secure future". The meeting began with the adoption of presidential statement S/PRST/2024/5, in which the Council reaffirmed its commitment to international law, including the Charter. The meeting was chaired by the Prime Minister of Slovenia, Robert Golob. The Secretary-General and two representatives of civil society briefed the Council.

On 30 September, the Council met to hear a briefing from the Director of the Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, Sivanka Dhanapala, on the situation regarding migrants in the Mediterranean following the expiry of the Council's authorization for Member States to intercept vessels on the high seas off the coast of Libya suspected of smuggling migrants.

On 21 October, the Council held a high-level briefing on anticipating the impact of scientific developments on international peace and security. The meeting was chaired by the Head of the Federal Department of Foreign Affairs of Switzerland, Ignazio Cassis. The Director of the United Nations Institute for Disarmament Research (UNIDIR), Robin Geiss, and representatives of civil society briefed the Council. On the same day, the Council adopted presidential statement S/PRST/2024/6 on the same topic.

On 8 November, the Council held a briefing on the theme "Threats posed by ransomware attacks against hospitals and other healthcare facilities and services". The meeting was chaired by the Deputy Permanent Representative of the United Kingdom to the United Nations, Barbara Woodward. The Director-General of the World Health Organization and a representative of civil society briefed the Council.

On 19 December, the Council held a high-level briefing on artificial intelligence. The meeting was chaired by the Secretary of State of the United States, Antony Blinken. The Secretary-General and representatives of civil society briefed the Council.

Non-proliferation

On 26 March, the Permanent Representative of Ecuador to the United Nations, José Javier de la Gasca, briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004).

On 24 April, the Council considered a draft resolution on weapons of mass destruction in outer space authored by Japan and the United States. Ahead of the vote on the draft resolution, the Council considered an amendment proposed by the Russian Federation and co-sponsored by China. The amendment received 7 votes in favour, 7 votes against and 1 abstention. The amendment was not adopted, having failed to obtain the required number of votes. The draft resolution received 13 votes in favour, 1 against and 1 abstention. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative vote of a permanent member of the Council. Following the casting of the veto, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

On 20 May, the Council considered a draft resolution on preventing an arms race in outer space authored by the Russian Federation. The draft resolution received 7 votes in favour, 7 votes against and 1 abstention. The draft resolution was not adopted, having failed to obtain the required number of votes.

The Council held its regular biannual briefings on the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015). The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and the Head of the Delegation of the European Union to the United Nations and Coordinator of the Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action Joint Commission, Olof Skoog, briefed the Council. The Permanent Representative of Malta to the United Nations, Vanessa Frazier, also briefed the Council as Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015).

Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

At the request of its members, the Council convened multiple briefings and consultations in response to launches using ballistic missile technology by the Democratic People's Republic of Korea. Two of those briefings were convened to address the security implications arising out of expanding military engagement of the Democratic People's Republic of Korea. Briefings were delivered by the Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, the High Representative for Disarmament Affairs and the Assistant Secretary-General for the Middle East, Asia and the Pacific. The Permanent Representative of Switzerland to the United Nations, Pascale Baeriswyl, also briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006).

On 28 March, the Council considered a draft resolution to extend the mandate of the Panel of Experts until 30 April 2025. The draft resolution, authored by the United States, received 13 votes in favour, 1 vote against and 1 abstention. The draft resolution was not adopted, owing to the negative vote of a permanent member of the Council. Following the casting of the veto, the Council submitted a special report to the General Assembly.

Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

On 13 March, the Council held an open debate under the item peacebuilding and sustaining peace on the theme "Promoting conflict prevention: empowering all actors, including women and youth". The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs, the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission and representatives of civil society briefed the Council.

24-17684 **25/210**

On 21 August, the Council held a high-level open debate on the theme "Peacebuilding and sustaining peace: the New Agenda for Peace – addressing global, regional and national aspects of conflict prevention". The meeting was chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation of Sierra Leone, Musa Timothy Kabba. The Council was briefed by the Assistant Secretary-General for Peacebuilding Support, the Commissioner for Political Affairs, Peace and Security of the African Union and representatives of civil society.

Protection of civilians in armed conflict

On 21 May, the Council held an open debate on the theme "Protection of civilians in armed conflict: twenty-fifth anniversary of Security Council resolution 1265 (1999)". The meeting was chaired by Mozambique in its capacity as President of the Council. The Council was briefed by the Under-Secretary-General and Special Adviser to the Secretary-General on the Prevention of Genocide, the Assistant Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Deputy Emergency Relief Coordinator, the President of the International Committee of the Red Cross, Mirjana Spoljaric Egger, and a representative of civil society.

On 27 February, the Council held an open briefing on the situation of food insecurity in Gaza following the distribution of the white note produced by the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator and Head of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, Martin Griffiths, in accordance with resolution 2417 (2018).

On 7 March, the Council held an open briefing on the situation of food insecurity in the Sudan following the distribution of the white note produced by the Under-Secretary-General for Humanitarian Affairs and Emergency Relief Coordinator and Head of the Office for the Coordination of Humanitarian Affairs, in accordance with resolution 2417 (2018).

On 24 May, the Council adopted resolution 2730 (2024) with 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention, calling on all States to respect and protect humanitarian personnel and United Nations and associated personnel, including national and locally recruited personnel, in accordance with their obligations under international law.

On 28 June, the Council adopted presidential statement S/PRST/2024/4, calling for the effective implementation of resolution 2474 (2019) on persons missing as a result of armed conflict.

On 7 August, the Council met for a briefing focused on the food security situation in Zamzam camp in the Sudan, following a review by the Famine Review Committee of the Integrated Food Security Phase Classification of the situation of food insecurity in the camp.

On 12 November, the Council met for a briefing focused on the food security situation in Gaza, following the publication of an alert by the Famine Review Committee of the Integrated Food Security Phase Classification on the risk of famine in Gaza.

On 26 November, the Council met for a briefing under the item "Protection of civilians in armed conflict", focused on protection of United Nations and humanitarian personnel.

Threats to international peace and security

The Council convened a number of meetings and consultations under the item "Threats to international peace and security" on Nord Stream.

On 9 April, the Security Council held a private meeting concerning the border controversy between Guyana and the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela. The meeting had been requested by Guyana by means of a letter dated 5 April. The Assistant Secretary-General for Europe, Central Asia and the Americas briefed the Council. On 15 April, the Council issued a press statement expressing concern about the possible escalation of tensions between the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela and Guyana, urging the parties to exercise maximum restraint and reminding them of their obligations to comply with the order of provisional measures issued by the International Court of Justice on 1 December 2023.

On 10 June, the Council adopted resolution 2734 (2024) with 14 votes in favour, none against and 1 abstention, extending the mandate of the Office of the Ombudsperson established pursuant to resolution 1904 (2009) and the mandate of the Monitoring Team established pursuant to resolution 1267 (1999), for a period of 36 months.

Committees established pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015); 1373 (2001); and 1540 (2004)

On 14 November, the Security Council held a briefing by the Chairs of the counter-terrorism-related Committees. The Permanent Representative of Malta, Vanessa Frazier, briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011), and 2253 (2015), the Permanent Representative of Algeria to the United Nations, Amar Bendjama, briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001), and the Chargé d'affaires a.i. of Ecuador, Andrés Efrén Montalvo Sosa, briefed the Council as Chair of the Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004). Council members expressed support for the Committees' work.

Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

The Council held its regular biannual briefings on the report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security. Briefings were delivered by the Under-Secretary-General of the Office of Counter-Terrorism, Vladimir Voronkov; the Executive Director of the Counter-Terrorism Committee Executive Directorate, Natalia Gherman; and the Secretary-General of the International Criminal Police Organization, Jürgen Stock.

The Council issued statements to the press on 4 January, 8 and 29 February, 22 and 27 March, 26 June, 29 August, 20 September and 8, 24 and 30 October following terrorist attacks in Iran, Pakistan, Burkina Faso, the Russian Federation, Mali and Türkiye. Council members condemned in the strongest terms the terrorist attacks and reaffirmed that terrorism in all its forms and manifestations constituted one of the most serious threats to international peace and security.

United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees

On 30 May, the Council held its annual briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, Filippo Grandi. The High Commissioner provided an overview of the current global situation for displaced people and refugees, highlighting key challenges faced by his Office. He appealed for greater efforts to respond to crises and conflicts that have displaced 123 million persons worldwide, who were fleeing violence, persecution and conflict.

24-17684 **27/210**

United Nations peacekeeping operations

On 9 September, the Council held its annual meeting on United Nations peacekeeping reform. At an open debate on the theme "Strengthening United Nations peacekeeping: reflections for the future", the Under-Secretary-General for Peace Operations and representatives of civil society briefed the Council.

Women and peace and security

Following the visit to South Sudan by members of the Informal Expert Group of Women and Peace and Security from 11 to 14 December 2023, the Council held a meeting on 16 January. The Permanent Representative of Switzerland to the United Nations, Pascale Baeriswyl, briefed the Council.

On 23 April, the Council held a high-level annual open debate on the theme "Preventing conflict-related sexual violence through demilitarization and gender-responsive arms control". The meeting was chaired by the Deputy Prime Minister of Malta, Christopher Fearne. The Special Representative of the Secretary-General on Sexual Violence in Conflict, Pramila Patten; the UN-Women Goodwill Ambassador, Danai Gurira; and a representative from civil society briefed the Council.

On 28 May, the Council held a high-level debate on the theme "Maintenance of international peace and security: the role of women and young people". The meeting was chaired by the Minister for Foreign Affairs and Cooperation of Mozambique, Verònica Nathaniel Macamo Dlhovo. The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs; the Assistant Secretary-General for Youth Affairs, Felipe Paullier; the Executive Director of UN-Women Sima Sami Bahous; and a representative from civil society briefed the Council.

On 7 August, the Council held a high-level briefing on the theme "Sustaining women and peace and security commitments in the context of accelerated drawdown of peace operations". The meeting was chaired by the Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation of Sierra Leone, Francess Piagie Alghali. The Assistant Secretary-General for Africa in the Departments of Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and Peace Operations, the Executive Director of UN-Women and a civil society representative briefed the Council.

On 24 October, the Council held a high-level annual open debate on the theme "Women building peace in a changing environment". The meeting was chaired by the President of Switzerland, Viola Amherd. The Deputy Secretary-General, Amina J. Mohamed; the Executive Director of UN-Women; and civil society representatives briefed the Council.

On 3 December, the Council held a briefing on the theme "Investing in the transformative power of intergenerational leadership on women and peace and security". The meeting was chaired by the Permanent Representative of the United States of America to the United Nations, Linda Thomas-Greenfield. The Under-Secretary-General for Political and Peacebuilding Affairs and a civil society representative briefed the Council.

The Council continued its consideration of its working methods, including through the implementation of the note by the President of the Council dated 30 August 2017 (S/2017/507) and subsequently adopted notes. On 11 March, the Council held an open debate on the issue. On 13 December, the Council adopted a revised note by the President of the Council (S/2024/507), which is aimed at building on previous efforts by the Council to document its working methods and to enhance its efficiency and transparency, as well as its interaction and dialogue with

non-Council members and bodies. The Council issued a statement to the press on 17 December highlighting key revisions to the previous note.

Working methods

Throughout the year, the Council continued to receive regular briefings from the Chairs of its subsidiary bodies, including the regular briefing by the outgoing Chairs, held on 13 December.

On 19 July, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2744 (2024), adopting revised procedures for delisting petitions submitted to the Focal Point and establishing an informal working group of the Council to examine general issues on sanctions.

On 6 December, the Council unanimously adopted resolution 2761 (2024), deciding that the provisions in paragraph 1 of resolution 2664 (2022) shall continue to apply to the 1267/1989/2253 ISIL (Da'esh) and Al-Qaida sanctions regime.

Adoption of the annual report of the Security Council

On 16 May, the Council adopted its annual report to the General Assembly.

In the report, which covered the Council's activities in 2023, the 47 per cent increase in additional, unscheduled meetings compared with 2022 was highlighted, along with the decline in the number of agreed outcome documents. Despite those challenges, the Council had managed to push forward meaningful action on pressing issues from Gaza to Afghanistan, Yemen to Colombia, and Somalia to Haiti. The annual report provided a snapshot of the Council's actions across its agenda, serving as a crucial mechanism to inform the wider membership of the United Nations about the trends and decisions made throughout the year.

24-17684 **29/210**

Part I Activities relating to all questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security

Chapter 1

Resolutions adopted by the Security Council

Resolution number	Date of adoption	Subject	Draft resolution
2722 (2024)	10 January	Maintenance of international peace and security	S/2024/37
2723 (2024)	30 January	The situation in Cyprus	S/2024/106
2724 (2024)	8 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/223
2725 (2024)	8 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/212
2726 (2024)	14 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/218
2727 (2024)	15 March	The situation in Afghanistan	S/2024/234
2728 (2024)	25 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	S/2024/254
2729 (2024)	29 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/347
2730 (2024)	24 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict	S/2024/400
2731 (2024)	30 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/415
2732 (2024)	31 May	The situation concerning Iraq	S/2024/413
2733 (2024)	31 May	The situation in Libya	S/2024/421
2734 (2024)	10 June	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts	S/2024/442
2735 (2024)	10 June	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	S/2024/448
2736 (2024)	13 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/464
2737 (2024)	27 June	The situation in the Middle East	S/2024/497
2738 (2024)	27 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	S/2024/501
2739 (2024)	27 June	Maintenance of international peace and security	S/2024/500

24-17684 31/210

2740 (2024)	27 June	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals	S/2024/505
2741 (2024)	28 June	The situation in Somalia	S/2024/513
2742 (2024)	8 July	The situation in the Middle East	S/2024/528
2743 (2024)	12 July	The question concerning Haiti	S/2024/540
2744 (2024)	19 July	General issues relating to sanctions	S/2024/557
2745 (2024)	30 July	Peace and security in Africa	S/2024/576
2746 (2024)	6 August	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	S/2024/593
2747 (2024)	12 August	The situation in Somalia	S/2024/602
2748 (2024)	15 August	The situation in Somalia	S/2024/609
2749 (2024)	28 August	The situation in the Middle East	S/2024/634
2750 (2024)	11 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	S/2024/666
2751 (2024)	30 September	The question concerning Haiti	S/2024/695
2752 (2024)	18 October	The question concerning Haiti	S/2024/753
2753 (2024)	30 October	The situation in Somalia	S/2024/790
2754 (2024)	30 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)	S/2024/789
2755 (2024)			
	31 October	The situation in Libya	S/2024/793
2756 (2024)	31 October 31 October	The situation in Libya The situation concerning Western Sahara	S/2024/793 S/2024/796
2756 (2024) 2757 (2024)		·	
	31 October	The situation concerning Western Sahara	S/2024/796
2757 (2024)	31 October 1 November	The situation concerning Western Sahara The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina	S/2024/796 S/2024/788
2757 (2024) 2758 (2024)	31 October 1 November 13 November	The situation concerning Western Sahara The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina The situation in the Middle East	S/2024/796 S/2024/788 S/2024/811
2757 (2024) 2758 (2024) 2759 (2024)	31 October 1 November 13 November 14 November	The situation concerning Western Sahara The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina The situation in the Middle East The situation in the Central African Republic Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and	S/2024/796 S/2024/788 S/2024/811 S/2024/818
2757 (2024) 2758 (2024) 2759 (2024) 2760 (2024)	31 October 1 November 13 November 14 November 14 November	The situation concerning Western Sahara The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina The situation in the Middle East The situation in the Central African Republic Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan Threats to international peace and security caused	S/2024/796 S/2024/788 S/2024/811 S/2024/818 S/2024/822
2757 (2024) 2758 (2024) 2759 (2024) 2760 (2024) 2761 (2024)	31 October 1 November 13 November 14 November 14 November 6 December	The situation concerning Western Sahara The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina The situation in the Middle East The situation in the Central African Republic Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts	S/2024/796 S/2024/788 S/2024/811 S/2024/818 S/2024/822 S/2024/879
2757 (2024) 2758 (2024) 2759 (2024) 2760 (2024) 2761 (2024) 2762 (2024)	31 October 1 November 13 November 14 November 14 November 6 December 13 December	The situation concerning Western Sahara The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina The situation in the Middle East The situation in the Central African Republic Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts The situation in Somalia	S/2024/796 S/2024/788 S/2024/811 S/2024/818 S/2024/822 S/2024/879 S/2024/903

2766 (2024)	20 December	The situation in the Middle East	S/2024/942
2767 (2024)	27 December	The situation in Somalia	S/2024/961

24-17684 33/210

Chapter 2

Statements by the President of the Security Council

Statement by the President	Date	Subject
S/PRST/2024/1	4 March	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PRST/2024/2	23 May	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PRST/2024/3	24 May	Peace consolidation in West Africa
S/PRST/2024/4	28 June	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PRST/2024/5	25 September	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PRST/2024/6	21 October	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PRST/2024/7	1 November	Central African region

Chapter 3

Communications between the President of the Security Council and the Secretary-General

Items relating to the situation in the Middle East

The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

S/2024/26	5 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/116	26 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/217	5 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/549	1 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/286	3 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/411	25 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/706	30 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/892	9 December	Identical letters from the Secretary-General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

S/2024/898	6 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/899	11 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

S/2024/379	7 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/380	10 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/567	24 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 35/210

Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East

Syrian Arab Republic

G /2.02.4 /1.1.1	20.1	
S/2024/111	29 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/192	26 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/200	27 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/214	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/273	26 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/346	26 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/414	28 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/486	19 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/512	26 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/569	26 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/632	27 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/697	26 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/787	28 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/861	26 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/971	26 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
Yemen		
S/2024/50	9 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/155	8 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/225	7 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/303	8 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/377	8 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/418	28 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/458	7 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/460	11 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/536	8 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/605	9 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/669	9 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/735	10 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/810	8 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/907	9 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
The situation i	n Somalia	
S/2024/48	29 December 2023	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/266	25 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/621	16 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/751	15 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/833	13 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/834	15 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

24-17684 37/210

Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia

The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina

S/2024/166	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/367	6 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/595	5 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/777	24 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/1003	30 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

The question concerning Haiti

S/2024/79	15 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/263	12 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/224	7 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/262	19 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/320	15 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/393	16 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/535	8 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/554	15 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/678	12 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/752	14 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/868	29 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

S/2024/44	3 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/45	9 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/180	16 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/502	14 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/503	27 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/522	28 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/627	19 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/628	22 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

S/2024/519	28 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/620	16 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/828	15 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

The situation in the Central African Republic

S/2024/22	4 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/257	21 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/391	15 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/422	30 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/615	13 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/650	26 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **39/210**

Children and armed conflict		
S/2024/113	29 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/746	14 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/763	21 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/784	25 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/786	28 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/856	25 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/1007	31 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/1008	31 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
Protection of	civilians in armed	d conflict
S/2024/852	22 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
Threats to int	ernational peace	and security caused by terrorist acts
S/2024/493	21 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
Central Afric	an region	
S/2024/648	21 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/649	30 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
Non-prolifera	tion of weapons o	of mass destruction
S/2024/179	20 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/703	27 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Security Council mission

S/2024/165 7 February Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

S/2024/297	8 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/348	22 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/403	23 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/676	10 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

S/2024/83	17 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/594	5 August	Identical letters from the Secretary-General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/869	29 November	Identical letters from the Secretary-General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

The situation concerning Iraq

S/2024/270	26 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/545	9 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/546	11 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/966	24 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Peace and security in Africa

S/2024/953 20 December Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **41/210**

The situation in Mali

S/2024/357	1 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/562	18 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question

S/2024/819	8 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/820	13 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Relations between Cameroon and Nigeria

S/2024/42	15 December 2023	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/43	9 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Chapter 4

Meetings of the Security Council

Meeting record	Date	Subject
S/PV.9525	3 January	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9526	10 January	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9527	10 January	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9528 (closed)	10 January	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2024/12)
		Report of the Secretary-General on his mission of good offices in Cyprus (S/2024/13)
S/PV.9529	11 January	Peace consolidation in West Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (S/2023/1075)
S/PV.9530	11 January	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2023/1033)
S/PV.9531	12 January	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9532	12 January	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9533	22 January	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9534	23 January	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9534 (Resumption 1)	24 January	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9535	25 January	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2024/62)
		Letter dated 15 January 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/79)

Note: For closed meetings, a communiqué is issued in place of a verbatim record.

24-17684 **43/210**

S/PV.9536 (closed)	25 January	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9537	25 January	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9538	29 January	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9539	30 January	The situation in Cyprus
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations operation in Cyprus (S/2024/12)
		Report of the Secretary-General on his mission of good offices in Cyprus (S/2024/13)
S/PV.9540	30 January	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9541	5 February	The situation in Myanmar
S/PV.9542	5 February	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9543	6 February	The situation concerning Iraq
		Thirty-ninth report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2024/95)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2682 (2023) (S/2024/96)
S/PV.9544	6 February	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9545	8 February	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Letter dated 5 February 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134)
S/PV.9546	12 February	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed
S/PV.9546 S/PV.9547	12 February 13 February	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134)
	·	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134) Threats to international peace and security
	·	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134) Threats to international peace and security Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9547 S/PV.9547	·	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134) Threats to international peace and security Maintenance of international peace and security The impact of climate change and food insecurity Letter dated 6 February 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Guyana to the United Nations addressed
S/PV.9547	13 February	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134) Threats to international peace and security Maintenance of international peace and security The impact of climate change and food insecurity Letter dated 6 February 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Guyana to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/146)
S/PV.9547 S/PV.9547	13 February	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134) Threats to international peace and security Maintenance of international peace and security The impact of climate change and food insecurity Letter dated 6 February 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Guyana to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/146) Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9547 S/PV.9547	13 February	Representative of Serbia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/134) Threats to international peace and security Maintenance of international peace and security The impact of climate change and food insecurity Letter dated 6 February 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Guyana to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/146) Maintenance of international peace and security The impact of climate change and food insecurity Letter dated 6 February 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Guyana to the United Nations addressed

S/PV.9550	15 February	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Eighteenth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat (S/2024/117)
S/PV.9551	19 February	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Somalia (S/2024/129)
S/PV.9552	20 February	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9553	20 February	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PV.9554	21 February	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2024/170)
S/PV.9555	22 February	Security Council mission
		Briefing by Security Council mission to Colombia (7 to 11 February 2024)
S/PV.9556	22 February	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9557	23 February	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9558 (closed)	26 February	The situation in Afghanistan
S/PV.9559	27 February	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9560	27 February	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9561	4 March	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PV.9562	4 March	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 29 January 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/111)
		Letter dated 26 February 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/192)
S/PV.9563 (closed)	4 March	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Mission in South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan

24-17684 **45/210**

S/PV.9564	5 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2024/188)
S/PV.9565	6 March	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2024/196)
S/PV.9566 (closed)	6 March	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.9567	7 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9568	8 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9569	8 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9570	8 March	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9571	11 March	Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council (S/2017/507)
		Working methods of the Security Council
		Letter dated 1 March 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Japan to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/208/Rev.1)
S/PV.9571 (Resumption 1)	14 March	Implementation of the note by the President of the Security Council (S/2017/507)
		Working methods of the Security Council
		Letter dated 1 March 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Japan to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/208/Rev.1)
S/PV.9572	11 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9573	12 March	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		European Union
S/PV.9574 and S/PV.9574 (Resumption 1)	13 March	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
		Promoting conflict prevention – empowering all actors including women and youth

		Letter dated 1 March 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Japan to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/210)
S/PV.9575	14 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2024/188)
S/PV.9576	14 March	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9577	15 March	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2024/196)
S/PV.9578	15 March	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9579	18 March	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Nuclear disarmament and non-proliferation
S/PV.9580 (closed)	18 March	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.9581	19 March	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Letter dated 15 January 2024 from the Panel of Experts on the Sudan addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/65)
S/PV.9582	20 March	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9583	21 March	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9584	22 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9585	22 March	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9586	25 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9587	25 March	Threats to international peace and security ^a
S/PV.9588	26 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9589	26 March	Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction
S/PV.9590	27 March	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2024/251)
S/PV.9591	28 March	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
		Note by the President of the Security Council (S/2024/215)

24-17684 **47/210**

S/PV.9592	28 March	Maintenance international peace and security ^a
S/PV.9593	2 April	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9594	3 April	Children and armed conflict
		Addressing the consequences of the denial of humanitarian access for children
		Letter dated 25 March 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Malta to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/265)
S/PV.9595	4 April	The situation in Myanmar
S/PV.9596	5 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9597	8 April	Admission of new members
		Letter dated 3 April 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/286)
S/PV.9598	9 April	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2024/267)
S/PV.9599 (closed)	9 April	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9600	11 April	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9601	12 April	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9602	14 April	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9603	15 April	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9604	15 April	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9605		The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2024/301)
S/PV.9606	17 April	Maintenance of international peace and security
		The role of young persons in addressing security challenges in the Mediterranean
		Letter dated 2 April 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Malta to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/288)
S/PV.9606	26 April	Maintenance of international peace and security
(Resumption 1)		The role of young persons in addressing security challenges in the Mediterranean

		Letter dated 2 April 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Malta to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/288)
S/PV.9607	17 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9608 and S/PV.9608 (Resumption 1)	18 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9608 (Resumption 2)	25 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9609	18 April	Admission of new members
		Letter dated 3 April 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/286)
S/PV.9610	19 April	Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe
S/PV.9611	19 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9612	22 April	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (S/2024/282)
S/PV.9613	22 April	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2024/310)
S/PV.9614 and	23 April	Women and peace and security
S/PV.9614 (Resumption 1)		Preventing conflict-related sexual violence through demilitarization and gender-responsive arms control
		Report of the Secretary-General on conflict-related sexual violence (S/2024/292)
		Letter dated 16 April 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Malta to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/311)
S/PV.9614	26 April	Women and peace and security
(Resumption 2)		Preventing conflict-related sexual violence through demilitarization and gender-responsive arms control
		Report of the Secretary-General on conflict-related sexual violence (S/2024/292)
		Letter dated 16 April 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Malta to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/311)

24-17684 **49/210**

S/PV.9615	24 April	The situation in the Great Lakes region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region (S/2024/278)
S/PV.9616	24 April	Non-proliferation
S/PV.9617	24 April	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9618	25 April	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9619	26 April	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9620	29 April	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9621	30 April	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
S/PV.9622	7 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (S/2024/354)
S/PV.9623	13 May	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9624	14 May	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9625	14 May	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9626	15 May	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
S/PV.9627	16 May	Consideration of the draft report of the Security Council to the General Assembly
S/PV.9628	16 May	The situation concerning Iraq
		Fortieth report of the Secretary-General pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2024/368)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2682 (2023) (S/2024/369)
S/PV.9629	20 May	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9630	20 May	Non-proliferation
S/PV.9631	20 May	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9632 and	21 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9632 (Resumption 1)		Twenty-fifth anniversary of Security Council resolution 1265 (1999)
		Letter dated 2 May 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Mozambique to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/359)

		Report of the Secretary-General on the protection of civilians in armed conflict (S/2024/385)
S/PV.9632	22 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
(Resumption 2)		Twenty-fifth anniversary of Security Council resolution 1265 (1999)
		Letter dated 2 May 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Mozambique to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/359)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the protection of civilians in armed conflict (S/2024/385)
S/PV.9633	23 May	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Strengthening the role of the African State in addressing global security and development challenges
		Letter dated 22 April 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Mozambique to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/327/Rev.1)
S/PV.9634	24 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9635	24 May	Peace consolidation in West Africa
S/PV.9636 (closed)	24 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9637	28 May	Maintenance of international peace and security
		The role of women and young people
		Letter dated 22 April 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Mozambique to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/328/Rev.1)
S/PV.9638	29 May	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9639	30 May	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9640	30 May	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9641	30 May	Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees
S/PV.9642	31 May	The situation concerning Iraq
		Fortieth report of the Secretary-General pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2024/368)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2682 (2023) (S/2024/369)
S/PV.9643	31 May	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

24-17684 51/210

S/PV.9644	31 May	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9645	5 June	Threats to international peace and security
		Letter dated 24 May 2024 from the Acting Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/408)
S/PV.9646 (closed)	6 June	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF)
S/PV.9647	7 June	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9648	10 June	Central African region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (S/2024/420)
S/PV.9649	10 June	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
S/PV.9650	10 June	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9651	11 June	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PV.9652	11 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 28 May 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/414)
S/PV.9653	12 June	The situation in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.9654	13 June	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9655	13 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9656	13 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9657	14 June	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9658	14 June	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9659	18 June	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9660	18 June	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9661	19 June	The situation in Libya

S/PV.9662	20 June	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Addressing evolving threats in cyberspace
		Letter dated 7 June 2024 from the Permanent Representative of the Republic of Korea to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/446)
S/PV.9663	21 June	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2024/469)
S/PV.9664 (closed)	21 June	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.9665	24 June	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Somalia (S/2024/426)
S/PV.9666	24 June	Non-proliferation
		Letter dated 4 June 2024 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/435)
S/PV.9667	25 June	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9668	25 June	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9669	26 June	Children and armed conflict
		How to advance our collective norms towards protecting children and ending all grave violations
		Report of the Secretary-General on children and armed conflict (S/2024/384)
		Letter dated 12 June 2024 from the Permanent Representative of the Republic of Korea to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/468)
S/PV.9669	27 June	Children and armed conflict
(Resumption 1)		How to advance our collective norms towards protecting children and ending all grave violations
		Report of the Secretary-General on children and armed conflict (S/2024/384)
		Letter dated 12 June 2024 from the Permanent Representative of the Republic of Korea to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/468)

24-17684 53/210

S/PV.9670	27 June	The situation in the Middle East
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2024/433)
S/PV.9671	27 June	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/PV.9672	27 June	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9673	27 June	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2024/473)
S/PV.9674	27 June	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/PV.9675	28 June	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9676	28 June	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.9677	28 June	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9678	2 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9679	3 July	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2024/508)
S/PV.9680	8 July	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 11 June 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/460)
S/PV.9681	8 July	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2024/482)
		Letter dated 28 June 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/519)
S/PV.9682	9 July	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9683	11 July	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2024/509)
S/PV.9684	12 July	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2024/508)

S/PV.9685	12 July	Peace consolidation in West Africa
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (\$/2024/521)
S/PV.9686 and	16 July	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9686 (Resumption 1)		Multilateral cooperation in the interest of a more just, democratic and sustainable world order
		Letter dated 9 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/537)
S/PV.9687 and S/PV.9687 (Resumption 1)	17 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9687 (Resumption 2)	19 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9688	19 July	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		The Collective Security Treaty Organization, the Commonwealth of Independent States, the Shanghai Cooperation Organization
		Letter dated 9 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of the Russian Federation to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (\$/2024/538)
S/PV.9689	19 July	General issues relating to sanctions
S/PV.9690	22 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9691	22 July	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9692	23 July	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9693	25 July	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9694	26 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9695	30 July	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.9696	31 July	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9697	5 August	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9698	6 August	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9699	6 August	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

24-17684 55/210

S/PV.9700	7 August	Women and peace and security
		Sustaining women and peace and security commitments in the context of accelerated drawdowns of peace operations
		Identical letters dated 30 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Sierra Leone to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2024/573)
S/PV.9701	8 August	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts
		Nineteenth report of the Secretary-General on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat (S/2024/583)
		Identical letters dated 31 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Sierra Leone to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2024/589)
S/PV.9702	12 August	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Addressing the historical injustice and enhancing Africa's effective representation in the United Nations Security Council
		Identical letters dated 30 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Sierra Leone to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2024/574)
S/PV.9703	12 August	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9704	13 August	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9705	14 August	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2024/572)
S/PV.9706 (closed)	14 August	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon
S/PV.9707	15 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9708	15 August	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9709	20 August	The situation in Libya
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2024/598)

S/PV.9710	21 August	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
		The New Agenda for Peace – addressing global, regional and national aspects of conflict prevention
		Identical letters dated 30 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Sierra Leone to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2024/581)
S/PV.9710	22 August	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
(Resumption 1)		The New Agenda for Peace – addressing global, regional and national aspects of conflict prevention
		Identical letters dated 30 July 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Sierra Leone to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2024/581)
S/PV.9711	22 August	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9712	28 August	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 24 July 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (\$/2024/567)
S/PV.9713	28 August	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9714	28 August	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9715	29 August	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9716	30 August	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9717	4 September	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9718	5 September	The situation in the Middle East
		Letter dated 27 August 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/632)
S/PV.9719 and	9 September	United Nations peacekeeping operations
S/PV.9719 (Resumption 1)		Strengthening United Nations peacekeeping: reflections for the future
		Letter dated 27 August 2024 from the Representative of Slovenia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/638)
S/PV.9720	10 September	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9721	11 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

24-17684 57/210

S/PV.9722	11 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9723	12 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9724	13 September	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9725	16 September	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9726	18 September	The situation in Afghanistan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2024/664)
S/PV.9727	18 September	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9728	19 September	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9729	20 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9730	20 September	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9731	24 September	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9732 and S/PV.9732	25 September	Maintenance of international peace and security
(Resumption 1)		Leadership for peace: united in respect of the Charter of the United Nations, in search of a secure future
		Letter dated 6 September 2024 from the Representative of Slovenia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/662)
S/PV.9733	25 September	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9734	27 September	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9735	30 September	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.9736	30 September	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2024/689)
S/PV.9737	30 September	Maintenance of international peace and security
S/PV.9738	2 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9739	2 October	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security
		African Union

		Report of the Secretary-General on strengthening the partnership between the United Nations and the African Union on issues of peace and security in Africa, including the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union (S/2024/629)
S/PV.9740	3 October	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on Somalia (S/2024/698)
S/PV.9741	4 October	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9742	8 October	The situation in the Great Lakes region
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region (S/2024/700)
S/PV.9743	9 October	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9744	9 October	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9745 (closed)	10 October	The situation in Somalia
S/PV.9746	10 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9747 (closed)	11 October	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara
S/PV.9748	15 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9749	15 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (S/2024/694)
S/PV.9750	16 October	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9751 (closed)	16 October	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic
S/PV.9752	18 October	The question concerning Haiti
S/PV.9753	21 October	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Anticipating the impact of scientific developments on international peace and security

24-17684 59/210

		Letter dated 1 October 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Switzerland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/708)
S/PV.9754	21 October	Maintenance of international peace and security
		Anticipating the impact of scientific developments on international peace and security
		Letter dated 1 October 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Switzerland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/708)
S/PV.9755	21 October	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9756 (closed)	22 October	Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice
S/PV.9757	22 October	The question concerning Haiti
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (S/2024/742)
S/PV.9758	23 October	The situation in the Central African Republic
		Report of the Secretary-General on the Central African Republic (S/2024/730 and S/2024/730/Corr.1)
S/PV.9759	23 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9760 and S/PV.9760	24 October	Women and peace and security
(Resumption 1)		Women building peace in a changing environment
		Report of the Secretary-General on women and peace and security (S/2024/671)
		Letter dated 1 October 2024 from the Permanent Representative of Switzerland to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General (S/2024/709)
S/PV.9761	28 October	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9762	28 October	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9763	29 October	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question
S/PV.9764	30 October	The situation in Somalia
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Somalia (S/2024/698)
S/PV.9765	30 October	Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (S/2024/741)

S/PV.9766	30 October	Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (S/2016/53)
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia (\$\sigma 2024/694)
S/PV.9767	30 October	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine
S/PV.9768	30 October	Peace and security in Africa
S/PV.9769	31 October	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9770	31 October	The situation in Libya
S/PV.9771	31 October	The situation concerning Western Sahara
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation concerning Western Sahara (S/2024/707)
S/PV.9772 (closed)	31 October	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B
		United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei
S/PV.9773	1 November	Central African region
S/PV.9774	1 November	The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina
S/PV.9775	4 November	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
S/PV.9776	5 November	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9777	5 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (S/2024/740)
S/PV.9778	7 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in South Sudan (S/2024/776)
S/PV.9779	8 November	Threats to international peace and security
S/PV.9780	12 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
S/PV.9781	12 November	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/PV.9782	13 November	The situation in the Middle East
S/PV.9783	14 November	The situation in the Central African Republic
S/PV.9784	14 November	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

24-17684 61/210

S/PV.9785	14 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Abyei (S/2024/740)	
S/PV.9786	18 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
S/PV.9787	18 November	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9787 (Resumption 1)	19 November	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9788	18 November	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9789	19 November	The situation in Libya	
S/PV.9790	20 November	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	
S/PV.9791 (closed)	20 November	The situation in Myanmar	
S/PV.9792	20 November	The question concerning Haiti	
S/PV.9793	21 November	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9794	25 November	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	
S/PV.9795	26 November	Protection of civilians in armed conflict	
S/PV.9796	27 November	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9797	3 December	Women and peace and security	
S/PV.9798	3 December	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9799	4 December	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9800	5 December	The situation in the Middle East	
		Letter dated 26 November 2024 from the Secretary-General addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/861)	
S/PV.9801 (closed)	5 December	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B	
		United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo	
S/PV.9802	6 December	General issues relating to sanctions	
S/PV.9803	6 December	The situation concerning Iraq	
		Forty-first report of the Secretary-General pursuant to paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013) (S/2024/844)	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the implementation of resolution 2732 (2024) (S/2024/857)	

S/PV.9804	9 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2024/863)	
S/PV.9805	10 December	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals	
		Note by the Secretary-General on the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals (S/2024/570)	
S/PV.9806	11 December	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9807	11 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
S/PV.9808	11 December	The question concerning Haiti	
S/PV.9809 (closed)	11 December	Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B	
		United Nations Disengagement Observer Force	
S/PV.9810	12 December	The situation in Afghanistan	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security (S/2024/876)	
S/PV.9811	13 December	Peace and security in Africa	
S/PV.9812	13 December	Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts	
S/PV.9813	13 December	Central African region	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (S/2024/865)	
S/PV.9814	13 December	Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council	
S/PV.9815	16 December	The situation in Libya	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Support Mission in Libya (S/2024/895)	
S/PV.9816	16 December	Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine	
S/PV.9817	17 December	The situation in the Middle East	
S/PV.9818	17 December	Non-proliferation	
		Letter dated 5 December 2024 from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2024/880)	

24-17684 63/210

S/PV.9819	18 December	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question	
S/PV.9820	18 December	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea	
S/PV.9821	19 December	Maintenance of international peace and security	
		Artificial intelligence	
S/PV.9822	19 December	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan	
S/PV.9823	20 December	Children and armed conflict	
S/PV.9824	20 December	The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (S/2024/863)	
S/PV.9825	20 December	Peace consolidation in West Africa	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (S/2024/871)	
S/PV.9826	20 December	The situation in the Middle East	
		Report of the Secretary-General on the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (S/2024/875)	
S/PV.9827	20 December	Threats to international peace and security	
S/PV.9828	27 December	The situation in Somalia	
S/PV.9829	30 December	Threats to international peace and security	

^a The provisional agenda was put to a vote and was not adopted, having failed to obtain the required number of votes.

Chapter 5

Meetings of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

Military Staff Committee

Formal/plenary meetings

19 January; 2, 16 and 29 February; 15, 21 and 28 March; 16 and 26 April; 10 and 23 May; 5, 7, 11, 21 and 24 June; 3, 19 and 24 July; 2, 16 and 30 August; 6, 13, 27 and 30 September; 11, 16, 25 and 31 October; 8, 12, 13, 14 and 22 November; 4, 6 and 17 December

Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities

Informal consultations/meetings

22 January; 1 May; 21 June; 5 and 8 July; 7 October; 6 and 13 November; 23 December

Joint briefing to Member States

5 September

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism

Formal/plenary meetings

25 January; 21 February; 14 March; 29 April; 28 May; 28 June; 15 and 16 August; 21 and 22 November

Informal consultations/meetings

28 February; 6 June

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Informal consultations/meetings

19 February; 24 May; 3 June; 26 July; 16 September; 7 November; 27 December

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004)

Formal/plenary meetings

24 January; 28 February; 22 March; 2 May; 4 June; 2 August

Informal consultations/meetings

1 October

Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan

Informal consultations/meetings

15 January; 4 June; 19 August; 7 November

24-17684 65/210

```
Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006)
     Informal consultations/meetings
     21 February; 5 June; 16 August; 15 November; 23 December
     Briefings to Member States
     20 March; 8 November
Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011)
concerning Libya
     Informal consultations/meetings
     2 February; 7 June; 5 and 12 December
Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011)
     Informal consultations/meetings
     26 January; 2 July; 23 December
     Joint briefing to Member States
     5 September
Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014)
     Informal consultations/meetings
     23 February; 3 May; 19 September; 17 October
Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015)
concerning South Sudan
     Informal consultations/meetings
     5 April; 17 October; 7 and 14 November
     Briefings to Member States
     31 January
Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022)
concerning Haiti
     Informal consultations/meetings
     15 March; 11 September; 8 November
     Briefings to Member States
     15 July; 11 November
Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023) concerning
Al-Shabaab<sup>1</sup>
     Informal consultations/meetings
     16 February; 1 July; 4 and 11 October
```

¹ By resolution 2713 (2023) adopted on 1 December 2023, the Security Council changed the name of the "Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab" to "Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023) concerning Al-Shabaab".

Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2745 (2024)

Informal consultations/meetings

1 February; 3 June; 4 October and 22 November

Briefings to Member States

9 August

Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict

Formal/plenary meetings

15 January; 12 April; 14 and 24 June; 30 August; 6 and 13 September; 5 and 27 November; 23 December

Informal consultations/meetings

14 February; 18 March; 22, 24 and 26 April; 9 and 20 May; 29 July; 13 August, 19 September; 9, 14 and 22 October; 6 and 15 November

Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations

Informal consultations/meetings

10 May; 20 August

Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa

Informal consultations/meetings

8 March; 30 April; 21 June; 3 July; 20 August; 13 September; 11 and 14 October

Joint consultative meetings between members of the Security Council and the Peace and Security Council of the African Union

17 and 18 October

Informal Working Group on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions

Formal/plenary meetings

19 January; 17 May; 6 September; 20 December

Informal Working Group on International Tribunals

Formal/plenary meetings

9 February; 29 April; 15 May; 10 and 18 June; 9 December

24-17684 67/210

Chapter 6

Reports of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

A. Military Staff Committee

Symbol Date submitted S/2024/928/Rev.1 17 December

B. Annual reports of committees

S/2024/915/Rev.1	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities
S/2024/926	Report of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003)
S/2024/945	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2024/996	2024 review of the implementation of Security Council resolution 1540 (2004)
S/2024/984	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan
S/2024/939	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006)
S/2024/983	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya
S/2024/923	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011)
S/2024/936	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning Guinea-Bissau
S/2024/935	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014)
S/2024/925	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan
S/2024/930	Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022) concerning Haiti
S/2024/934	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2745 (2024)
S/2024/997	Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023) concerning Al-Shabaab*

^{*} By resolution 2713 (2023) adopted on 1 November 2023, the Security Council changed the name of the "Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 751 (1992) concerning Al-Shabaab" to "Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023) concerning Al-Shabaab".

C. Annual reports of working groups

S/2024/929	Security Council Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict
S/2024/954	Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa for 2024
S/2024/970	Informal Working Group of the Security Council on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions
S/2024/992	Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2024
S/2024/1001	Informal Working Group on International Tribunals for 2024

24-17684 69/210

Chapter 7

Reports of panels and monitoring mechanisms

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to		
Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team				
S/2024/92	23 January	Resolution 2610 (2021)		
S/2024/117	31 January	Resolutions 1526 (2004) and 2253 (2015)		
S/2024/499	3 July	Resolution 2716 (2023)		
Central African Republic: Pan	el of Experts			
S/2024/128	1 February	Resolution 2693 (2023)		
S/2024/444	5 June	Resolution 2693 (2023)		
Democratic Republic of the Co	ngo: Group of Experts			
S/2024/432	31 May	Resolution 1533 (2004)		
S/2024/969	27 December	Resolution 1533 (2004)		
Democratic People's Republic of Korea: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/215	4 March	Resolution 2680 (2023)		
Haiti: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/253	25 March	Resolution 2700 (2023)		
S/2024/704	30 September	Resolution 2700 (2023)		
Libya: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/914	6 December	Resolution 2701 (2023)		
Somalia: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/748	15 October	Resolution 2713 (2023)		
South Sudan: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/343	26 April	Resolution 2683 (2023)		
S/2024/855	25 November	Resolution 2731 (2024)		
Sudan: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/65	15 January	Resolution 2676 (2023)		
Yemen: Panel of Experts				
S/2024/731	11 October	Resolution 2707 (2023)		

Security Council missions

Symbol	Date	Report
S/2024/130	2 February	Mission to Ethiopia (5 and 6 October 2023)
S/2024/258	22 March	Mission to Colombia (7 to 11 February)

24-17684 71/210

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

Peacekeeping operation	Established by resolution	Decisions adopted during the reporting period relating to the mandate of the operation
United Nations Military Observer Group in India and Pakistan (UNMOGIP)	47 (1948)	None
United Nations Truce Supervision Organization (UNTSO)	50 (1948)	None
United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus (UNFICYP)	186 (1964)	2723 (2024)
United Nations Disengagement Observer Force (UNDOF)	350 (1974)	2737 (2024); 2766 (2024)
United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon (UNIFIL)	425 (1978) 426 (1978)	2749 (2024)
United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara (MINURSO)	690 (1991)	2756 (2024)
United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo (UNMIK)	1244 (1999)	None
United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo (MONUSCO)	1925 (2010)	2765 (2024)
United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei (UNISFA)	1990 (2011)	2760 (2024)
United Nations Mission in South Sudan (UNMISS)	1996 (2011)	2726 (2024); 2729 (2024)
United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic (MINUSCA)	2149 (2014)	2759 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

Mission or office	Established by	Decisions adopted during the reporting period relating to the mandate of the mission or office
United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan (UNAMA)	1401 (2002)	2727 (2024)
United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq (UNAMI)	1500 (2003)	2732 (2024)
United Nations Regional Centre for Preventive Diplomacy for Central Asia	S/2007/280	None
United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement (UNMHA)	2452 (2019)	2742 (2024)
United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa (UNOCA)	S/2010/457	None
United Nations Office to the African Union (UNOAU)	General Assembly resolution 64/288	None
United Nations Support Mission in Libya (UNSMIL)	2009 (2011)	2755 (2024)
United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel (UNOWAS)	S/2016/89	None
United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia	2366 (2017)	2754 (2024)
United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti (BINUH)	2476 (2019)	2743 (2024)
United Nations Transitional Assistance Mission in Somalia (UNTMIS)	2753 (2024)	

24-17684 73/210

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2024/12	3 January	United Nations operation in Cyprus
S/2024/13	3 January	Mission of good offices of the Secretary-General in Cyprus
S/2024/20	15 January	Implementation of resolution 2697 (2023)
S/2024/62	15 January	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2024/93	24 January	Children and armed conflict in the Central African Republic
S/2024/95	25 January	Thirty-ninth report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2024/96	25 January	Implementation of resolution 2682 (2023)
S/2024/117	31 January	Eighteenth report on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat
S/2024/129	2 February	Situation in Somalia
S/2024/161	13 February	Children and armed conflict in Colombia
S/2024/170	15 February	Central African Republic
S/2024/188	26 February	Situation in South Sudan
S/2024/196	28 February	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2024/204	29 February	Situation in the Sudan pursuant to Security Council resolution 2715 (2023)
S/2024/207	1 March	Youth and Peace and Security
S/2024/222	8 March	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) during the period from 21 October 2023 to 20 February 2024
S/2024/242	18 March	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2024/247	21 March	Children and armed conflict in Iraq
S/2024/251	21 March	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2024/267	27 March	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2024/278	l April	Implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region
S/2024/282	2 April	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo

S/2024/292	4 April	Conflict-related sexual violence
S/2024/301	9 April	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2024/309	15 April	Assessment of progress achieved on the key benchmarks
		established in paragraph 2 of resolution 2577 (2021)
S/2024/310	16 April	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2024/319	18 April	Thirty-ninth semi-annual report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2024/352	30 April	Implementation of resolution 2684 (2023)
S/2024/354	1 May	Situation in Abyei
S/2024/368	7 May	Fortieth report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2024/369	7 May	Implementation of resolution 2682 (2023)
S/2024/385	14 May	Protection of civilians in armed conflict
S/2024/420	30 May	The situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa
S/2024/384	3 June	Children and armed conflict
S/2024/426	3 June	Situation in Somalia
S/2024/434	3 June	Responsibility to protect: the commitment to prevent and protect populations from atrocity crimes
S/2024/433	4 June	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2024/443	7 June	Children and armed conflict in the Sudan
S/2024/469	13 June	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2024/473	18 June	Central African Republic
S/2024/471	19 June	Seventeenth report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2024/480	19 June	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2024/482	20 June	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2024/508	27 June	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2024/509	27 June	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2024/521	1 July	Activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel
S/2024/526	5 July	Mission of good offices of the Secretary-General in Cyprus
S/2024/527	5 July	United Nations operation in Cyprus

24-17684 **75/210**

S/2024/548	12 July	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) during the period from 21 February to 20 June 2024
S/2024/550	23 July	Promotion of durable peace through sustainable development in Africa
S/2024/559	17 July	Children and armed conflict in Nigeria
S/2024/572	29 July	Situation in South Sudan
S/2024/583	31 July	Nineteenth report on the threat posed by ISIL (Da'esh) to international peace and security and the range of United Nations efforts in support of Member States in countering the threat
S/2024/598	8 August	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2024/600	8 August	Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and other organizations
S/2024/626	23 September	Children and armed conflict in the Philippines
S/2024/629	26 August	Strengthening the partnership between the United Nations and the African Union on issues of peace and security in Africa, including the work of the United Nations Office to the African Union
S/2024/642	30 August	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2698 (2023)
S/2024/664	9 September	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2024/689	20 September	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2024/671	24 September	Women and peace and security
S/2024/693	24 September	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2024/694	26 September	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2024/698	27 September	Situation in Somalia
S/2024/700	30 September	Implementation of the Peace, Security and Cooperation Framework for the Democratic Republic of the Congo and the Region
S/2024/707	1 October	Situation concerning Western Sahara
S/2024/711	1 October	Assessment of progress achieved on the key benchmarks pursuant to paragraph 25 of resolution 2700 (2023)
S/2024/723	9 October	Fortieth semi-annual report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2024/730 and S/2024/730/Corr.1	11 October	Central African Republic

S/2024/740	14 October	Situation in Abyei
S/2024/741	14 October	United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo
S/2024/705	15 October	Children and armed conflict in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2024/742	15 October	United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti
S/2024/759	21 October	Recommendations for the protection of civilians in the Sudan
S/2024/776	25 October	Situation in South Sudan
S/2024/817	13 November	Implementation of Security Council resolution 1701 (2006) during the period from 21 June to 20 October 2024
S/2024/844	24 November	Forty-first report on the implementation of paragraph 4 of Security Council resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2024/767	25 November	Peacebuilding and sustaining peace
S/2024/857	26 November	Implementation of resolution 2732 (2024)
S/2024/858	26 November	Implementation of resolution 2733 (2024)
S/2024/863	29 November	United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo
S/2024/865	29 November	The situation in Central Africa and the activities of the United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa
S/2024/871	2 December	Activities of the United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel
S/2024/875	2 December	United Nations Disengagement Observer Force
S/2024/876	6 December	The situation in Afghanistan and its implications for international peace and security
S/2024/895	10 December	United Nations Support Mission in Libya
S/2024/896	12 December	Eighteenth report on the implementation of Security Council resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2024/913	13 December	Implementation of Security Council resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2024/968	26 December	United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia
S/2024/883	9 January 2025	Children and armed conflict in Mali

24-17684 **77/210**

Special reports on the use of the veto¹

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
A/78/786	26 February	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian Question
A/78/832	26 March	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian Question
A/78/831	28 March	Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea
A/78/856	23 April	Admission of new members
A/78/861	26 April	Non-proliferation
A/79/622	21 November	Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan
A/79/627	25 November	The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian Question

¹ Reports issued pursuant to General Assembly resolution 76/262.

Summary statements by the Secretary-General of matters of which the Security Council was seized

S/2024/10 and S/2024/10/Rev.1/Add.1-52.

24-17684 **79/210**

Notes by the President of the Security Council

Symbol	Date submitted	Subject
S/2024/2	30 January	Bureaux of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council
S/2024/215	4 March	Report of the Panel of Experts established pursuant to resolution 1874 (2009)
S/2024/371	8 May	Non-proliferation
S/2024/376	9 May	Non-proliferation
S/2024/387	16 May	Adoption of the annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly
S/2024/455	10 June	Non-proliferation
S/2024/570	29 July	International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/2024/867	3 December	Non-proliferation
S/2024/877	4 December	Non-proliferation
S/2024/507	13 December	Working methods

Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council*

Month	Country	Symbol
January	France	S/2024/633
February	Guyana	S/2024/920
March	Japan	
April	Malta	S/2024/985
May	Mozambique	S/2024/994
June	Republic of Korea	S/2025/316
July	Russian Federation	
August	Sierra Leone	
September	Slovenia	S/2025/146
October	Switzerland	S/2024/980
November	United Kingdom	S/2024/964
December	United States	

24-17684 **81/210**

^{*} Monthly assessments by former Presidents of the work of the Security Council are intended to have an informative purpose and should not necessarily be considered as representing the views of the Council. Assessments not available at the time of issuance of the present report will be posted on the Council website as they become available.

Part II

Questions considered by the Security Council under its responsibility for the maintenance of international peace and security

Chapter 1

The situation in Cyprus

Meetings of the Council

9539 (30 January)

(See also part II, chap. 20)

Consultations of the whole

17 January; 11 July

Resolutions adopted

2723 (2024)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus

Resolution 186 (1964) Established

Resolution 2723 (2024) Mandate extended until 31 January 2025

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/12	3 January	Resolution 186 (1964) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2674 (2023)
S/2024/13	3 January	Resolution 2674 (2023)
S/2024/526	5 July	Resolution 2723 (2024)
S/2024/527	5 July	Resolution 186 (1964) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2723 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/229	11 March	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/291	4 April	Letter from the representative of Greece to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/298	8 April	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/374	7 May	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **83/210**

S/2024/386	14 May	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/463	12 June	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/465	12 June	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/524	2 July	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2024/635	27 August	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the Secretary-General
S/2024/750	14 October	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/864	27 November	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2024/885	6 December	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2024/889	9 December	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2024/987	28 December	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General

Items relating to the situation in the Middle East

A. The situation in the Middle East, including the Palestinian question

Meetings of the Council

9531 (12 January); 9534 (23 and 24 January); 9540 (31 January); 9552 (20 February); 9556 (22 February); 9572 (11 March); 9584 (22 March); 9586 (25 March); 9588 (26 March); 9596 (5 April); 9607 (17 April); 9608 (18 April); 9617 (24 April); 9631 (20 May); 9638 (29 May); 9650 (10 June); 9667 (25 June); 9678 (2 July); 9687 (17 July); 9696 (31 July); 9704 (13 August); 9711 (22 August); 9715 (29 August); 9717 (4 September); 9725 (16 September); 9730 (20 September); 9734 (27 September); 9744 (9 October); 9750 (16 October); 9763 (29 October); 9790 (20 November); 9794 (25 November); 9819 (18 December)

Consultations of the whole

10, 30 and 31 January; 12, 22 and 29 February; 7 and 18 March; 1 April; 6, 7, 9 and 28 May; 2 July; 19 and 20 September; 3, 9, 16 and 22 October; 10 December

Resolutions adopted

2728 (2024); 2735 (2024)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2024/173 (A/78/786), S/2024/239 (A/78/832); S/2024/312 (A/78/856); S/2024/835 (A/79/627)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/480	19 June	Resolution 2334 (2016)
S/2024/913	13 December	Resolution 2334 (2016)
Communication	ons	
S/2024/16	3 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/26	5 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/49	10 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/54	12 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **85/210**

S/2024/84	19 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/116	26 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/118	31 January	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/147	7 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/157	9 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/162	12 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/174	19 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/202	29 February	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/217	5 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/219	6 March	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/237	13 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/240	14 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/271	28 March	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/549	1 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/283	2 April	Identical letters from the representatives of Mauritania, Saudi Arabia and Uganda to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/286	3 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/287	3 April	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General
S/2024/290	4 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/307	15 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/313	16 April	Letter from the Chair of the Committee on the Admission of New Members addressed to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/325	19 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/341	25 April	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/351	30 April	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General
S/2024/372	8 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/382	10 May	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/390	16 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/397/ Rev.1	20 May	Letter from the representative of Bahrain to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **87/210**

S/2024/406	24 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/411	25 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/410	27 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/419	29 May	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/424	31 May	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/451	7 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/447	9 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/452	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/479	19 June	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/518	28 June	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/533	8 July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/547	12 July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/586	31 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

S/2024/588	31 July	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/599	8 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/606	10 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/611	12 August	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/617	14 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/639	29 August	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/647	1 September	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/668	10 September	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/684	18 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/706	30 September	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/719	8 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/743	14 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/764	18 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **89/210**

S/2024/761	21 October	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/791	29 October	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/802	1 November	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the Secretary-General
S/2024/805	5 November	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/853	25 November	Letter from the representative of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/892	9 December	Identical letters from the Secretary-General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/919	16 December	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/940	18 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/1000	30 December	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

B. The situation in the Middle East

1. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Meetings of the Council

9670 (27 June); 9826 (20 December)

(See also part II, chap. 20.B)

Consultations of the whole

27 March; 13 June; 3 October; 12 December

Resolutions adopted

2737 (2024); 2766 (2024)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Truce Supervision Organization

Resolution 50 (1948) Established

(A number of military observers are assigned to the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force)

United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Resolution 350 (1974)	Established
Resolution 2718 (2023)	Mandate renewed until 30 June 2024
Resolution 2737 (2024)	Mandate renewed until 31 December 2024
Resolution 2766 (2024)	Mandate renewed until 30 June 2025

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/242	18 March	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2718 (2023)
S/2024/433	4 June	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2718 (2023)
S/2024/693	24 September	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2737 (2024)
S/2024/875	2 December	Resolution 350 (1974) and subsequent resolutions, including resolution 2737 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/52 11 January Identical letters from the repre- to the Secretary-General and t Security Council	
S/2024/87 21 January Identical letters from the representation of the Security Syrian Arab Republic to the Security and the President of the Security	ecretary-General
S/2024/148 7 February Identical letters from the representation of the Security Syrian Arab Republic to the Security and the President of the Security	ecretary-General
S/2024/158 10 February Identical letters from the representation Syrian Arab Republic to the Syrian Arab Republic	ecretary-General
S/2024/201 29 February Identical letters from the representation Syrian Arab Republic to the Security and the President of the Security	ecretary-General

24-17684 **91/210**

S/2024/246	19 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/248	19 March	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/361	3 May	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/396	21 May	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/453	10 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/481	19 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/516	27 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/553	12 July	Letter from the representative of Kazakhstan to the Secretary-General and the President of the General Assembly
S/2024/558	16 July	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/603	9 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/617	14 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/663	9 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/702	29 September	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/718	7 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/729	10 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/737	14 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/764	18 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/770	24 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/792	29 October	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/807	6 November	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/815	11 November	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/824	14 November	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/830	15 November	Letter from the representative of Cuba to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/846	21 November	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/872	1 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/887	9 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/898	6 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/899	11 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/962	23 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **93/210**

2. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon and Security Council resolution 1701 (2006)

Meetings of the Council

9738 (2 October); 9746 (10 October) (See also part II, chap. 20.C)

Consultations of the whole

19 March; 24 July; 10 October; 19 November; 4 December

Resolutions adopted

2749 (2024)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Truce Supervision Organization

Resolution 50 (1948) Established

(A number of military observers are assigned to the United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon)

United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon

Resolutions 425 (1978) and 426 (1978)	Established
Resolution 2695 (2023)	Mandate extended until 31 August 2024
Resolution 2749 (2024)	Mandate extended until 31 August 2025

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/222	8 March	Resolution 1701 (2006)
S/2024/548	12 July	Resolution 1701 (2006)
S/2024/817	13 November	Resolution 1701 (2006)

Communications

S/2024/91	20 December 2023	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/100	28 December 2024	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/5	2 January	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/24	4 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/36	9 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/72	16 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/114	30 January	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/168	15 February	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/181	21 February	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/167	15 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/211	29 February	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/233	12 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/235	13 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/256	22 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/268	27 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/272	28 March	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/299	8 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **95/210**

S/2024/300	8 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/304	13 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/317	17 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/330	24 April	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/349	30 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/379	7 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/380	10 May	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/416	29 May	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/450	10 June	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/485	20 June	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/525	3 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/542	11 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/566	24 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/567	24 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/578	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/579	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/587	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/612	13 August	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/630	25 August	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/636	27 August	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/657	5 September	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/673	12 September	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/684	18 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/685	19 September	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/701	28 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/715	2 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/716	3 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/728	10 October	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/738	14 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **97/210**

S/2024/739	14 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/749	15 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/764	18 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/768	24 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/773	25 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/782	28 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/783	28 October	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/804	5 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/806	6 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/812	11 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/881	12 November	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/838	18 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/839	18 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/841	20 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/854	25 November	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/870	29 November	Letter from the representatives of France and the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/882	5 December	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/912	13 December	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/933	17 December	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/963	23 December	Identical letters from the representative of Lebanon to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

3. Other matters relating to the situation in the Middle East

(a) Syrian Arab Republic

Meetings of the Council

9559 (27 February); 9562 (4 March); 9583 (21 March); 9618 (25 April); 9640 (30 May); 9652 (11 June); 9668 (25 June); 9690 (22 July); 9713 (28 August); 9718 (5 September); 9729 (20 September); 9759 (23 October); 9793 (21 November); 9798 (3 December); 9800 (5 December); 9817 (17 December)

Consultations of the whole

24 January; 27 February; 30 May; 5 September; 3, 17 and 27 December

Communications

S/2024/111	29 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/132	3 February	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/192	26 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/200	27 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/214	4 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **99/210**

S/2024/273	26 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President
		of the Security Council
S/2024/281	1 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/285	1 April	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/296	5 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/305	13 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/346	26 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/414	28 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/474	15 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/486	19 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/512	26 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/569	26 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/592	5 August	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/632	27 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/697	26 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/781	27 October	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/787	28 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/814	11 November	Letter from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/860	26 November	Letter from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the President of the Security Council

S	/2024/848	21 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/861	26 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/873	2 December	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/888	9 December	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/890	9 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/971	26 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

(b) Yemen

Meetings of the Council

9548 (14 February); 9576 (14 March); 9603 (15 April); 9623 (13 May); 9654 (13 June); 9680 (8 July); 9692 (23 July); 9707 (15 August); 9723 (12 September); 9748 (15 October); 9776 (5 November); 9806 (11 December)

Consultations of the whole

16 January; 14 February; 14 March; 15 April; 13 May; 13 June; 23 July; 15 August; 12 September; 15 October; 13 November

Resolutions adopted

2742 (2024); 2758 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Mission to Support the Hudaydah Agreement

Resolution 2452 (2019)	Established
Resolution 2691 (2023)	Mandate extended until 14 July 2024
Resolution 2742 (2024)	Mandate extended until 14 July 2025

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Yemen

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/731	11 October	Resolution 2707 (2023)

24-17684 101/210

Communications

S/2024/50	9 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/55	12 January	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/56	12 January	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/64	15 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/90	22 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/103	26 January	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/108	26 January	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/136	5 February	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/141	6 February	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/155	8 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/175	19 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/225	7 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/244	18 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/250	20 March	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/303	8 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/377	8 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/389	15 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/418	28 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/458	7 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/460	11 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/462	12 June	Letter from the representative of Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/483	19 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/536	8 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/543	11 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/564	23 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/605	9 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/669	9 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/735	10 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/731	11 October	Letter from the Panel of Experts on Yemen to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/810	8 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/907	9 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/935	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2140 (2014) to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 103/210

The situation concerning Western Sahara

Meetings of the Council

9747 (11 October); 9771 (31 October)

(See also part II, chap. 20.D)

Consultations of the whole

16 April; 16 October

Resolutions adopted

2756 (2024)

Symbol

S/2024/774

Draft amendments not adopted

S/2024/797; S/2024/798

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara

Resolution 690 (1991)	Established
Resolution 2703 (2023)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2024
Resolution 2756 (2024)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2025

Pursuant to

Reports of the Secretary-General

Date submitted

24 October

S/2024/707	1 October	Resolution 2703 (2023)
Communications		
S/2024/177	19 February	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/427	31 May	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/520	5 July	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/614	13 August	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/682	18 September	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council

104/210 24-17684

Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council

United Nations peacekeeping operations

Meetings of the Council

9719 (9 September)

Communications

S/2024/638	27 August	Letter from the representative of Slovenia to the Secretary-General
S/2024/992	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Working Group on Peacekeeping Operations to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 105/210

The situation in Somalia

Meetings of the Council

9551 (19 February); 9665 (24 June); 9677 (28 June); 9703 (12 August); 9708 (15 August); 9740 (3 October); 9745 (10 October); 9764 (30 October); 9828 (27 December)

Consultations of the whole

24 June

Resolutions adopted

```
2741 (2024); 2747 (2024); 2748 (2024); 2753 (2024); 2762 (2024); 2767 (2024)
```

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission in Somalia

Resolution 2102 (2013)	Established for an initial period of 12 months
Resolution 2753 (2024)	Terminated on 1 November 2024

United Nations Transitional Assistance Mission in Somalia

Resolution 2753 (2024) Established for an initial period of 12 months

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Somalia

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/748	15 October	Resolution 2713 (2023)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/129	2 February	Resolutions 2705 (2023) and 2710 (2023)
S/2024/426	3 June	Resolutions 2705 (2023) and 2710 (2023)
S/2024/698	27 September	Resolutions 2705 (2023) and 2748 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/48	29 December 2023	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/266	25 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/597	7 August	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/621	16 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/748	15 October	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023) concerning Al-Shabaab to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/751	15 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/785	28 October	Letter from the Chair of the Military Staff Committee to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/833	13 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/834	15 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/997	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2713 (2023) concerning Al-Shabaab to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 107/210

Items relating to the situation in the former Yugoslavia

A. The situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina

Meetings of the Council

9621 (30 April; 9626 (15 May); 9774 (1 November); 9805 (10 December)

Consultations of the whole

26 April

Resolutions adopted

2757 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/166	14 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/333	25 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/355	30 April	Letter from representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/367	6 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/595	5 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/777	24 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/800	31 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/803	4 November	Letter from the representative of Bosnia and Herzegovina to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/1003	30 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

B. Security Council resolutions 1160 (1998), 1199 (1998), 1203 (1998), 1239 (1999) and 1244 (1999)

Meetings of the Council

9545 (8 February); 9612 (22 April); 9765 (30 October)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Interim Administration Mission in Kosovo

Resolution 1244 (1999) Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/282	2 April	Resolution 1244 (1999)
S/2024/741	14 October	Resolution 1244 (1999)
Communications		
S/2024/134	5 February	Letter from representative of Serbia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/259	22 March	Letter from representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/353	30 April	Letter from representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/409	24 May	Letter from representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 109/210

The question concerning Haiti

Meetings of the Council

9535 (25 January); 9566 (6 March); 9580 (18 March); 9613 (22 April); 9664 (21 June); 9679 (3 July); 9684 (12 July); 9735 (30 September); 9752 (18 October); 9757 (22 October); 9792 (20 November); 9808 (11 December)

Consultations of the whole

30 January; 3 July; 22 October; 20 November

Resolutions adopted

2743 (2024); 2751 (2024); 2752 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Integrated Office in Haiti

Resolution 2476 (2019)	Established
Resolution 2692 (2023)	Mandate extended until 15 July 2024
Resolution 2743 (2024)	Mandate extended until 15 July 2025

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Haiti

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/253	25 March	Paragraph 20 of resolution 2700 (2023)
S/2024/704	30 September	Paragraph 20 of resolution 2700 (2023)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/62	15 January	Resolution 2692 (2023)
S/2024/310	16 April	Resolution 2692 (2023)
S/2024/508	27 June	Resolution 2692 (2023)
S/2024/711	1 October	Resolution 2700 (2023)
S/2024/742	15 October	Resolution 2743 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/79	15 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/263	12 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/220	7 March	Letter from the representative of Haiti to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/224	7 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/227	8 March	Letter from the representative of Haiti to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/262	19 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/253	25 March	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2653 (2022) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/320	15 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/393	16 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/535	8 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/554	15 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/678	12 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/704	30 September	Letter from the Panel of Experts established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2653 (2022) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/752	14 October	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/765	22 October	Letter from the representative of Haiti to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/847	22 November	Letter from the representatives of Ecuador and the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/868	29 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/930	17 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2653 (2022) concerning Haiti to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 111/210

The situation in Afghanistan

Meetings of the Council

9558 (26 February); 9565 (6 March); 9577 (15 March); 9663 (21 June); 9726 (18 September); 9810 (12 December)

Consultations of the whole

11 July

Resolutions adopted

2727 (2024); 2763 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission in Afghanistan

Resolution 1401 (2002)	Established
Resolution 2727 (2024)	Mandate extended until 17 March 2025

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/196	28 February	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2678 (2023)
S/2024/469	13 June	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2727 (2024)
S/2024/664	9 September	General Assembly resolution 68/11 and Security Council resolution 2727 (2024)
S/2024/876	6 December	General Assembly resolution 74/9 and Security Council resolution 2727 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/720	7 October	Letter from the representatives of China,
		the Islamic Republic of Iran, Pakistan and
		the Russian Federation to the Secretary-
		General and the President of the Security
		Council

International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals

Meetings of the Council

9561 (4 March); 9651 (11 June); 9674 (27 June); 9805 (10 December)

Statement by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/1

Resolutions adopted

2740 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/44	3 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/45	9 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/180	16 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/199	29 February	Report of the Office of Internal Oversight Services on evaluation of the methods and work of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals
S/2024/308	15 April	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/392	16 May	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/502	14 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/503	27 June	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/522	28 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/570	29 July	Note by the Secretary General
S/2024/627	19 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/628	22 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/836	18 November	Letter from the President of the International Residual Mechanism for Criminal Tribunals to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 113/210

S/2024/1001

30 December

Letter from the Chair of the Informal Working Group on International Tribunals to the President of the Security Council

The situation in the Great Lakes region

Meetings of the Council

9615 (24 April); 9742 (8 October)

Consultations of the whole

8 October

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/278	1 April	Resolution 2717 (2023)
S/2024/700	30 September	Resolution 2717 (2023)

Communications

S/2024/314 16 April Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding

Commission to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 115/210

The situation concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meetings of the Council

```
9553 (20 February); 9590 (27 March); 9671 (27 June); 9681 (8 July); 9699 (6 August); 9736 (30 September); 9804 (9 December); 9824 (20 December) (See also part II, chap. 20.E)
```

Consultations of the whole

27 March; 8 July; 30 September; 9 and 19 December

Resolutions adopted

```
2738 (2024); 2746 (2024); 2765 (2024)
```

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Resolution 1925 (2010)	Established
Resolution 2688 (2023)	Mandate extended until 1 July 2024
Resolution 2765 (2024)	Mandate extended until 20 December 2025

Reports of the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/432	31 May	Resolution 1533 (2004)
S/2024/969	27 December	Resolution 1533 (2004)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/251	21 March	Resolution 2717 (2023)
S/2024/482	20 June	Resolution 2717 (2023)
S/2024/689	20 September	Resolution 2717 (2023)
S/2024/863	29 November	Resolution 2717 (2023)
(See also part II, chap. 13)		

Communications

S/2024/150	8 February	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/190	19 February	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/198	28 February	Letter from the Chair of the United Nations Military Staff Committee to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/236	13 March	Letter from the representative of Mozambique to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/314	16 April	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/432	31 May	Letter from the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/519	28 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/523	2 July	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/575	26 July	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/620	16 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/828	15 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/859	26 November	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/927	17 December	Letter from the representative of the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/945	19 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1533 (2004) concerning the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/950	19 December	Letter from the representative of Rwanda to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 117/210

S/2024/969 27 December

Letter from the Group of Experts on the Democratic Republic of the Congo to the President of the Security Council

(See also part II, chap. 16)

The situation in the Central African Republic

Meetings of the Council

```
9554 (21 February); 9673 (27 June); 9758 (23 October); 9783 (14 November) (See also part II, chaps. 20.F and 23)
```

Consultations of the whole

21 February; 27 June

Resolutions adopted

2759 (2024)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic

Resolution 2149 (2014)	Established
Resolution 2709 (2023)	Mandate extended until 15 November 2024
Resolution 2759 (2024)	Mandate extended until 15 November 2025

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/128	1 February	Resolution 2693 (2023)
S/2024/444	5 June	Resolution 2693 (2023)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/170	15 February	Resolution 2709 (2023)
S/2024/473	18 June	Resolution 2709 (2023)
S/2024/730 and S/2024/730/Corr.1	11 October	Resolution 2709 (2023)

(See also part II, chap. 13)

24-17684 119/210

Communications		
S/2024/22	4 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/128	1 February	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic extended pursuant to Security Council resolution 2693 (2023) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/257	21 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/391	15 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/422	30 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/444	5 June	Letter from the Panel of Experts on the Central African Republic extended pursuant to Security Council resolution 2693 (2023) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/506	26 June	Letter from the representative of the Central African Republic to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/615	13 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/650	26 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/821	13 November	Letter from the Chair of the Central African Republic configuration of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/934	17 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolution 2745 (2024) to the President of the Security Council

Children and armed conflict

Meetings of the Council

9594 (3 April); 9669 (26 June); 9823 (20 December)

Resolutions adopted

2764 (2024)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/93	24 January	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/161	13 February	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/247	21 March	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/384	3 June	Resolution 2427 (2018)
S/2024/443	7 June	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/559	17 July	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/626	23 September	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/705	15 October	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions
S/2024/883	9 January 2025	Resolution 1612 (2005) and subsequent resolutions

Communications

S/2024/113	29 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/265	25 March	Letter from the representative of Malta to the Secretary-General
S/2024/335	26 April	Letter from the representative of Malta to the Secretary-General
S/2024/468	12 June	Letter from the representative of the Republic of Korea to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/474	15 June	Identical letters from the representative of the Syrian Arab Republic to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/475	17 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/492	21 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

24-17684 121/210

S/2024/746	14 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/763	21 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/784	25 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/786	28 October	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/856	25 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/929	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Working Group on Children and Armed Conflict to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/995	30 December	Letter from the representative of Malta to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/1007	31 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/1008	31 December	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Protection of civilians in armed conflict

Meetings of the Council

9560 (27 February); 9582 (20 March); 9618 (25 April); 9632 (21 May); 9634 (24 May); 9675 (28 June); 9781 (12 November); 9795 (26 November)

Consultations of the whole

13 May; 19 August

Statement by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/4

Resolutions adopted

2730 (2024)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/385	14 May	S/PRST/2018/18
S/2024/434	3 June	General Assembly resolution 75/277
Communications		
S/2024/252	20 March	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/359	2 May	Letter from the representative of Mozambique to the Secretary-General
S/2024/852	22 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 123/210

General issues relating to sanctions

Meetings of the Council

9689 (19 July); 9802 (6 December)

Resolutions adopted

2744 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/884 5 December Letter from the representative of the Russian

Federation to the Secretary-General

Women and peace and security

Meetings of the Council

9614 (23 and 26 April); 9700 (7 August); 9760 (24 October); 9797 (3 December)

Pursuant to

Consultations of the whole

16 January

Symbol

Reports of the Secretary-General

Date submitted

Symbol	Date submitted	Tursuuni 10			
S/2024/671	24 September	S/PRST/2010/22			
Communication	Communications				
S/2024/203	26 February	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General			
S/2024/217	5 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council			
S/2024/269	27 March	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General			
S/2024/311	16 April	Letter from the representative of Malta to the Secretary-General			
S/2024/342	26 April	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council			
S/2024/373	8 May	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General			
S/2024/573	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Sierra Leone to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council			
S/2024/591	5 August	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General			
S/2024/709	1 October	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the Secretary-General			

24-17684 125/210

S/2024/757	17 October	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/772	24 October	Letter from the representative of Slovenia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/813	6 November	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General
S/2024/951	17 December	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General
S/2024/981	27 December	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/990	30 December	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General
S/2024/991	30 December	Letter from the representative of Malta to the President of the Security Council

Briefing by the President of the International Court of Justice

Meetings of the Council

9756 (22 October)

24-17684 127/210

Briefing by the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees

Meetings of the Council

9641 (30 May)

Briefing by the Chairperson-in-Office of the Organization for Security and Cooperation in Europe

Meetings of the Council

9610 (19 April)

Communications

S/2024/541 10 July

Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the General Assembly

24-17684 129/210

Meeting of the Security Council with the troop- and police-contributing countries pursuant to resolution 1353 (2001), annex II, sections A and B

A. United Nations Peacekeeping Force in Cyprus

```
Meetings of the Council
```

9528 (10 January)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9528

(See also part II, chap. 1)

B. United Nations Disengagement Observer Force

Meetings of the Council

9646 (6 June); 9809 (11 December)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9646

(See also part II, chap. 2.B.1)

C. United Nations Interim Force in Lebanon

Meetings of the Council

9706 (14 August)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9706

(See also part II, chap. 2.B.2)

D. United Nations Mission for the Referendum in Western Sahara

Meetings of the Council

9747 (11 October)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9747

(See also part II, chap. 3)

E. United Nations Organization Stabilization Mission in the Democratic Republic of the Congo

Meetings of the Council

9801 (5 December)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9801(See also part II, chap. 11)

F. United Nations Multidimensional Integrated Stabilization Mission in the Central African Republic

Meetings of the Council

9751 (16 October)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9751

(See also part II, chap. 12)

G. United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei

Meetings of the Council

9772 (31 October)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9772

(See also part II, chap. 25)

H. United Nations Mission in South Sudan

Meetings of the Council

9563 (4 March)

Official communiqués

S/PV.9563

(See also part II, chap. 25)

24-17684 131/210

Threats to international peace and security caused by terrorist acts

Meetings of the Council

9550 (15 February); 9649 (10 June); 9701 (8 August); 9812 (13 December)

Resolutions adopted

2734 (2024); 2761 (2024)

Reports of the Analytical Support and Sanctions Monitoring Team

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/92	23 January	Resolution 2610 (2021)
S/2024/117	31 January	Resolutions 1526 (2004) and 2253 (2015)
S/2024/499	3 July	Paragraph (a) of the annex to resolution 2716 (2023)
S/2024/583	31 July	Resolution 2734 (2024)
S/2024/915/ Rev.1	13 December	Resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015)
S/2024/923	16 December	Resolution 1988 (2011)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/20	15 January	Resolutions 2379 (2017) and 2697 (2023)

Communications

S/2024/53	28 December 2023	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General
S/2024/14	3 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/71	16 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/92	23 January	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/156	8 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/187	23 February	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1373 (2001) concerning counter-terrorism to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/193	27 February	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/238	14 March	Letter from the Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/274	28 March	Letter from the Ombudsperson to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/408	24 May	Letter from the Acting Special Adviser and Head of the United Nations Investigative Team to Promote Accountability for Crimes Committed by Da'esh/Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/412	28 May	Letter from the representatives of Austria, Belgium, Chile, Costa Rica, Denmark, Finland, Germany, Ireland, Liechtenstein, the Kingdom of the Netherlands, Norway, Sweden and Switzerland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/423	31 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/493	21 June	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/499	3 July	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/556	19 July	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/577	29 July	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 133/210

S/2024/589	31 July	Identical letters from the representative of Sierra Leone to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/608	12 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/677	13 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/696	27 September	Letter from the Ombudsperson to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/778	26 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/915/ Rev.1	13 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee pursuant to resolutions 1267 (1999), 1989 (2011) and 2253 (2015) concerning Islamic State in Iraq and the Levant (Da'esh), Al-Qaida and associated individuals, groups, undertakings and entities to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/923	16 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1988 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/931	11 December	Letter from the representatives of the Russian Federation and Turkmenistan to the Secretary- General, the President the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

Briefings by Chairs of subsidiary bodies of the Security Council

Meetings of the Council

9814 (13 December)

24-17684 135/210

Central African region

Meetings of the Council

9648 (10 June); 9813 (13 December)

(See also part II, chap. 12)

Consultations of the whole

10 June; 13 December

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/7

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Regional Office for Central Africa

S/2010/457 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/420	30 May	S/PRST/2018/17
S/2024/865	29 November	Resolution 2349 (2017) and S/PRST/2024/7
Communication	ons	
S/2024/648	21 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/649	30 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/655	3 September	Letter from the representative of Mozambique to the President of the Security Council

Non-proliferation of weapons of mass destruction

Meetings of the Council

9589 (26 March)

Communications

S/2024/115	30 January	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/179	20 February	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security-Council
S/2024/215	7 March	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2024/703	27 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security-Council
S/2024/924	17 December	Letter from the representative of Turkmenistan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/996	30 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1540 (2004) to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 137/210

Reports of the Secretary-General on the Sudan and South Sudan

Meetings of the Council

9538 (29 January); 9564 (5 March); 9567 (7 March); 9568 (8 March); 9569 (8 March); 9575 (14 March); 9581 (19 March); 9611 (19 April); 9620 (29 April); 9622 (7 May); 9636 (24 May); 9639 (30 May); 9655 (13 June); 9656 (13 June); 9659 (18 June); 9697 (5 August); 9698 (6 August); 9705 (14 August); 9721 (11 September); 9722 (11 September); 9727 (18 September); 9761 (28 October); 9777 (5 November); 9778 (7 November); 9780 (12 November); 9786 (18 November); 9807 (11 December); 9822 (19 December)

Consultations of the whole

27 February; 5 and 7 March; 29 April; 7 May; 18 and 19 June; 29 July; 14 August; 5 September; 28 October; 18 November

Resolutions adopted

2724 (2024), 2725 (2024); 2726 (2024); 2729 (2024); 2731 (2024); 2736 (2024); 2750 (2024); 2760 (2024)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2024/826 (A/79/622)

Peacekeeping operations established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Interim Security Force for Abyei

Resolution 1990 (2011) Established

Resolution 2708 (2023) Mandate extended until 15 November 2024

Resolution 2760 (2024) Mandate extended until 15 November 2025

United Nations Mission in South Sudan

Resolution 1996 (2011) Established

Resolution 2726 (2024) Mandate extended until 30 April 2024

Resolution 2729 (2024) Mandate extended until 30 April 2025

Reports of the Panel of Experts on South Sudan

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/343	26 April	Resolution 2683 (2023)
S/2024/855	25 November	Resolution 2731 (2024)

Reports of the Panel of Experts on the Sudan

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/65	15 January	Resolution 2676 (2023)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to		
S/2024/188	26 February	Resolution 2677 (2023)		
S/2024/204	29 February	Resolution 2715 (2023)		
S/2024/309	15 April	Resolution 2683 (2023)		
S/2024/354	1 May	Resolution 2708 (2023)		
S/2024/572	29 July	Resolution 2729 (2024)		
S/2024/740	14 October	Resolution 2708 (2023)		
S/2024/759	21 October	Resolution 2736 (2024)		
S/2024/776	25 October	Resolution 2729 (2024)		
(See also part II, chap. 13)				

Communications

S/2024/17	3 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/63	15 January	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/82	23 January	Letter from the representative of Djibouti to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/203	26 February	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2024/232	11 March	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/276	28 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/297	8 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/326	21 April	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 139/210

S/2024/338	24 April	Identical letters from the representative of Sierra Leone to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/336	25 April	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/343	26 April	Letter from the Panel of Experts on South Sudan established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2206 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/345	26 April	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/348	22 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/362	6 May	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/403	23 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/457	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/510	26 June	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/604	9 August	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/670	10 September	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/676	10 September	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/690	21 September	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/733	11 October	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/809	8 November	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the Secretary-General
S/2024/831	15 November	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/843	20 November	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/855	25 November	Letter from the Panel of Experts on South Sudan established pursuant to Security Council resolution 2206 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/904	11 December	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/925	17 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 2206 (2015) concerning South Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/984	27 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1591 (2005) concerning the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/988	28 December	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
(See also part II, chap. 13)		

24-17684 141/210

Peacebuilding and sustaining peace

Meetings of the Council

9574 (13 and 19 March); 9710 (21 August)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to		
S/2024/767	25 November	Resolution 2558 (2020) and General Assembly resolution 75/201		
Communications				
S/2024/83	17 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General		
S/2024/153	9 February	Report of the Peacebuilding Commission on its seventeenth session		
S/2024/210	1 March	Letter from the representative of Japan to the Secretary-General		
S/2024/315	11 April	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council		
S/2024/316	16 April	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission		
S/2024/339	30 April	Letter from the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council to all Permanent Representatives and Permanent Observers		
S/2024/430	31 May	Letter from the representative of Japan to the Secretary-General		
S/2024/581	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Sierra Leone to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council		
S/2024/594	5 August	Identical letters from the Secretary-General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council		
S/2024/622	20 August	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council		
S/2024/827	13 November	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council		
S/2024/866	26 November	Letter from the representative of Japan to the Secretary-General		

S/2024/869	29 November	Identical letters from the Secretary-General to the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/1002	30 December	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Slovenia and Switzerland to the Secretary-General

24-17684 143/210

The situation concerning Iraq

Meetings of the Council

9543 (6 February); 9628 (16 May); 9642 (31 May); 9803 (6 December)

Consultations of the whole

6 February; 16 May; 6 December

Resolutions adopted

2732 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Assistance Mission for Iraq

Resolution 1500 (2003)	Established
Resolution 2682 (2023)	Mandate extended until 31 May 2024
Resolution 2732 (2024)	Mandate extended until 31 December 2025

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to	
S/2024/96	25 January	Resolution 2682 (2023)	
S/2024/369	7 May	Resolution 2682 (2023)	
S/2024/857	26 November	Resolution 2732 (2024)	
(See also part II, Ch. 13)			

Communications

S/2024/3	1 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/33	8 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/76	16 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/97	26 January	Identical letters from the representative of Morocco to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/178	19 February	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/185	22 February	Letter from the representative Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/270	26 March	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/378	8 May	Letter from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General
S/2024/438	4 June	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/440	6 June	Letter from the representative Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/545	9 July	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/546	11 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/658	5 September	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/672	12 September	Letter from the representative Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/816	29 October	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/845	21 November	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/910	12 December	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/921	16 December	Letter from the representative Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/926	17 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1518 (2003) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/966	24 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 145/210

Threats to international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

9533 (22 January); 9536 (25 January); 9537 (25 January); 9542 (5 February); 9544 (6 February); 9546 (12 February); 9585 (22 March); 9587 (25 March);* 9593 (2 April); 9599 (9 April); 9601 (12 April); 9604 (15 April); 9619 (26 April); 9629 (20 May); 9658 (14 June); 9691 (22 July); 9693 (25 July); 9716 (30 August); 9724 (13 September); 9741 (4 October); 9769 (31 October); 9779 (8 November); 9827 (20 December); 9829 (30 December)

Consultations of the whole

14 March; 20 August

Communications

S/2024/149	7 February	Letter from the representatives of Denmark, Germany and Sweden to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/159	7 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/189	26 February	Letter from the representatives of Denmark, Germany and Sweden to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/230	1 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/329	19 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/334	26 April	Letter from the representatives of Denmark, Germany and Sweden to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/564	23 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/580	30 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/619	16 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

^{*} The provisional agenda was put to a vote and was not adopted, having failed to obtain the required number of votes.

S/2024/653	4 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/665	9 September	Letter from the representatives of Denmark, Germany and Sweden to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/727	10 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 **147/210**

Non-proliferation

Meetings of the Council

9616 (24 April); 9630 (20 May); 9666 (24 June); 9818 (17 December)

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2024/302 (A/78/861); S/2024/323 (amendment to S/2024/302); S/2024/383

Reports of the Security Council Facilitator

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/435	4 June	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2024/918	16 December	Resolution 2231 (2015)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/471	19 June	Resolution 2231 (2015)
S/2024/896	12 December	Resolution 2231 (2015)

Communications

S/2024/206	1 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/344	26 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/371	8 May	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2024/376	9 May	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2024/429	3 June	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/435	4 June	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/439	5 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/455	10 June	Note by the President of the Security Council

S/2024/466	12 June	Letter from the representatives of China, the Islamic Republic of Iran and the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the
		President of the Security Council
S/2024/467	12 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/476	19 June	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/661	6 September	Letter from the representative of Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/766	22 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/862	27 November	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2024/874	2 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/867	3 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2024/878	3 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/877	4 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2024/880	5 December	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/886	6 December	Letter from the representatives of France, Germany and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary-General
S/2024/891	9 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/894	10 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/918	16 December	Letter from the Security Council Facilitator for the implementation of resolution 2231 (2015) to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 149/210

Peace consolidation in West Africa

Meetings of the Council

9529 (11 January); 9635 (24 May); 9685 (12 July); 9825 (20 December)

Consultations of the whole

11 January; 15 May; 12 July; 28 August; 20 December

Statement by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/3

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Office for West Africa and the Sahel

S/2016/89 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/521	1 July	Resolution 2349 (2017)
S/2024/871	2 December	Resolution 2349 (2017)
Communications		
S/2024/120	31 January	Letter from the representatives of Burkina Faso, Mali and the Niger to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/357	1 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President

of the Security Council

The situation in Myanmar

Meetings of the Council

9541 (5 February); 9595 (4 April); 9791 (20 November)

Consultations of the whole

3 July; 19 September

Communications

S/2024/425	31 May	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/813	6 November	Letter from the representatives of Sierra Leone, Switzerland and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland to the Secretary- General

(See also part II, chap. 13)

24-17684 151/210

Non-proliferation/Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Meetings of the Council

9591 (28 March); 9643 (31 May); 9676 (28 June); 9775 (4 November); 9820 (18 December)

Consultations of the whole

18 January; 6 March; 22 May; 29 August; 26 November

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2024/255 (A/78/831)

Communications

S/2024/939 17 December Letter from the Chair of the Security Council

Committee established pursuant to resolution 1718 (2006) to the President of the Security Council

Maintenance of international peace and security

A. General issues

Meetings of the Council

9525 (3 January); 9527 (10 January); 9532 (12 January); 9592 (28 March);* 9657 (14 June); 9672 (27 June); 9682 (9 July); 9714 (28 August); 9737 (30 September)

Consultations of the whole

3 and 10 January

Symbol

Resolutions adopted

2722 (2024); 2739 (2024)

Reports of the Secretary-General

 $Date\ submitted$

S/2024/642	30 August	Resolution 2698 (2023)
Communicatio	ns	
S/2024/33	8 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/64	15 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/264	25 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/515	25 June	Letter from the representative of the Kingdom of the Netherlands to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/534	9 July	Letter from the representative of Estonia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/555	16 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2024/640	28 August	Letter from the representative of Slovenia to the Secretary-General

 $Pursuant\ to$

B. Cybersecurity

Meetings of the Council

9662 (20 June)

24-17684 153/210

^{*} The provisional agenda was put to a vote and was not adopted, having failed to obtain the required number of votes.

Communications

S/2024/445	6 June	Letter from the representative of the Republic of Korea to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/446	7 June	Letter from the representative of the Republic of Korea to the President of the Security Council

C. Impact of climate change and food insecurity

Meetings of the Council

9547 (13 and 14 February)

Communications

S/2024/146	6 February	Letter from the representative of Guyana to the Secretary-General
S/2024/725	8 October	Letter from the representative of Guyana to the Secretary-General
S/2024/989	30 December	Letter from the representative of Malta to the President of the Security Council

D. Nuclear disarmament and non-proliferation

Meetings of the Council

9579 (18 March)

E. The role of young persons in addressing security challenges in the Mediterranean

Meetings of the Council

9606 (17, 22 and 26 April)

Communications

S/2024/288	2 April	Letter from the representative of Malta to the Secretary-General
S/2024/386	14 May	Letter from the representative of Cyprus to the President of the Security Council

F. Strengthening the role of the African State in addressing global security and development challenges

Meetings of the Council

9633 (23 May);

Statement by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/2

Communications

S/2024/327/ 22 April Letter from the representative of Mozambique to the Secretary-General

G. The role of women and young people

Meetings of the Council

9637 (28 May)

Communications

S/2024/328/ Rev.1	22 April	Letter from the representative of Mozambique to the Secretary-General
S/2024/404	23 May	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council

H. Multilateral cooperation in the interest of a more just, democratic and sustainable world order

Meetings of the Council

9686 (16 July)

Communications

S/2024/537 9 July Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

I. Addressing the historical injustice and enhancing Africa's effective representation on the Security Council

Meetings of the Council

9702 (12 August)

Communications

S/2024/574	30 July	Identical letters from the representative of Sierra Leone to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/614	13 August	Letter from the representative of Morocco to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 155/210

J. Leadership for peace: united in respect of the Charter of the United Nations, in search of a secure future

Meetings of the Council

9732 (25 September)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/5

Communications

S/2024/662 6 September Letter from the representative of Slovenia to the Secretary-General

K. Anticipating the impact of scientific developments on international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

9753 (21 October); 9754 (21 October)

Statements by the President of the Security Council

S/PRST/2024/6

Communications

S/2024/708	1 October	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the Secretary-General
S/2024/795	30 October	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the Secretary-General

L. Artificial intelligence

Meetings of the Council

9821 (19 December)

Communications

S/2024/944 19 December Letter from the representative of Latvia to the

President of the Security Council

Peace and security in Africa

Meetings of the Council

9695 (30 July); 9768 (31 October); 9811 (13 December)

Consultations of the whole

29 January

Resolutions adopted

2745 (2024)

Symbol

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

Pursuant to

United Nations Office to the African Union

Date submitted

General Assembly resolution 64/288 Established

Reports of the Secretary-General

•		
S/2024/550	23 July	General Assembly resolution 78/263
S/2024/629	26 August	S/PRST/2014/27
Communicati	ons	
S/2024/623	19 August	Letter from the representatives of Burkina Faso, Mali and Niger to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/646	1 September	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/659	6 September	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/762	22 October	Letter from the Chair of the Ad Hoc Working Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/799	31 October	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/829	15 November	Letter from the Chair of the Military Staff Committee to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/953	20 December	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/954	20 December	Letter from the Chair of the Ad Hoc Working

24-17684 157/210

Group on Conflict Prevention and Resolution in Africa to the President of the Security Council

Cooperation between the United Nations and regional and subregional organizations in maintaining international peace and security

Meetings of the Council

9573 (12 March); 9688 (19 July); 9739 (2 October)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/600	8 August	Resolution 1809 (2008) and S/PRST/2013/12
S/2024/629	26 August	S/PRST/2014/27
Communication	ons	
S/2024/107	29 January	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General
S/2024/287	3 April	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General
S/2024/351	30 April	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General
S/2024/382	10 May	Letter from the representative of Mauritania to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/477	19 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/495	24 June	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/538	9 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General

The situation in Libya

Meetings of the Council

9549 (15 February); 9605 (16 April); 9624 (14 May); 9644 (31 May); 9661 (19 June); 9709 (20 August); 9743 (9 October); 9770 (31 October); 9789 (19 November); 9815 (16 December)

Consultations of the whole

15 February; 16 April; 19 June; 20 August; 9 October; 16 December

Resolutions adopted

2733 (2024); 2755 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Support Mission in Libya

Resolution 2009 (2011)	Established
Resolution 2702 (2023)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2024
Resolution 2755 (2024)	Mandate extended until 31 January 2025

Reports of the Panel of Experts on Libya

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/914	6 December	Resolution 2701 (2023)

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/301	9 April	Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021), 2647 (2022), 2656 (2022) and 2702 (2023)
S/2024/352	30 April	Resolution 2684 (2023)
S/2024/598	8 August	Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021) and 2702 (2023)
S/2024/858	26 November	Resolution 2733 (2024)
S/2024/895	10 December	Resolutions 2510 (2020), 2542 (2020), 2570 (2021) and 2755 (2024)

Communications

S/2024/686	19 September	Letter from the representative of Libya to the
		President of the Security Council

24-17684 159/210

S/2024/914	6 December	Letter from the Panel of Experts on Libya established pursuant to resolution 1973 (2011) to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/983	27 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security Council Committee established pursuant to resolution 1970 (2011) concerning Libya to the President of the Security Council

Maintenance of peace and security of Ukraine

Meetings of the Council

9526 (10 January); 9557 (23 February); 9570 (8 March); 9578 (15 March); 9600 (11 April); 9625 (14 May); 9647 (7 June); 9660 (18 June); 9720 (10 September); 9731 (24 September); 9755 (21 October); 9767 (30 October); 9788 (18 November); 9796 (27 November); 9799 (4 December); 9816 (16 December)

Communications

S/2024/6	2 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/7	2 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/18	3 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/21	4 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/25	5 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/31	6 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/34	8 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/46	10 January	Letter from the representative of Denmark to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/47	10 January	Letter from the representative of Estonia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/81	11 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/80	17 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/88	19 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/94	23 January	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

24-17684 161/210

S/2024/99	26 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/112	30 January	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/145	2 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/144	5 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/160	8 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/172	16 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/176	19 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/275	19 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/182	20 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/183	21 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/186	23 February	Letter from the representatives of Czechia and Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/195	27 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/197	28 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

S/2024/206	1 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/209	1 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/213	4 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/216	4 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/231	7 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/226	8 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/229	11 March	Letter from the representative of Türkiye to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/243	15 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/261	19 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/260	22 March	Letter from representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/277	28 March	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/279	29 March	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/284	2 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/293	5 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

24-17684 163/210

S/2024/306	12 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/318	17 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/321	18 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/322	19 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/331	24 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/332	25 April	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/340	25 April	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/365	3 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/381	10 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/388	15 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/394	17 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/395	20 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/399	21 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/402	23 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

S/2024/405	23 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/407	24 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/417	29 May	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/428	31 May	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/441	6 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/449	7 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/470	14 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/484	14 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/475	17 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/478	19 June	Letter from the representatives of Switzerland and Ukraine to the Secretary- General
S/2024/487	19 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/491	20 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/492	21 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/504	26 June	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General

24-17684 165/210

S/2024/517	27 June	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/530	4 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/531	4 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/532	8 July	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/534	9 July	Letter from the representative of Estonia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/544	11 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/552	15 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the General Assembly
S/2024/561	19 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/568	25 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/580	30 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/590	1 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/601	8 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/607	9 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/610	12 August	Identical letters from the representative of Belarus to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/618	15 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/619	16 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/624	21 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/631	26 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/637	26 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/641	29 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/643	29 August	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/644	30 August	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/652	3 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/656	4 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/660	5 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/661	6 September	Letter from the representative of Lithuania to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/674	12 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/675	12 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/679	13 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 167/210

S/2024/680	16 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/683	18 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/688	19 September	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/691	20 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/692	20 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/699	27 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/736	1 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/717	2 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/724	9 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/732	11 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/745	14 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/747	15 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/775	24 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/794	30 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/801	31 October	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/832	15 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

S/2024/842	20 November	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/850	22 November	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/851	22 November	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/897	10 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/902	10 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/900	11 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/901	11 December	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/911	12 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 169/210

Identical letters dated 19 January 2016 from the Permanent Representative of Colombia to the United Nations addressed to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council (\$/2016/53)

Meetings of the Council

9530 (11 January); 9598 (9 April); 9683 (11 July); 9749 (15 October); 9766 (30 October)

Consultations of the whole

11 January; 9 April

Resolutions adopted

2754 (2024)

Special political missions established, functioning or terminated

United Nations Verification Mission in Colombia

Resolution 2366 (2017)	Established
Resolution 2704 (2023)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2024
Resolution 2754 (2024)	Mandate extended until 31 October 2025

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/267	27 March	Resolutions 2366 (2017) and 2704 (2023)
S/2024/509	27 June	Resolutions 2366 (2017) and 2704 (2023)
S/2024/694	26 September	Resolutions 2366 (2017) and 2704 (2023)
S/2024/968	26 December	Resolutions 2366 (2017) and 2754 (2024)

(See also part II, chap. 13)

Communications

S/2024/165	7 February	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General
S/2024/585	31 July	Letter from the representative of Colombia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/726	10 October	Letter from the Chair of the Peacebuilding Commission to the President of the Security Council

The situation in the Democratic People's Republic of Korea

Meetings of the Council

9653 (12 June)

Communications

S/2024/461

12 June

Note verbale from the Permanent Mission of the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 171/210

Part III

Other matters considered by the Security Council

Chapter 1

Annual report of the Security Council to the General Assembly

Meetings of the Council

9627 (16 May)

Communications

S/2024/387 16 May Note by the President of the Security

Council

Chapter 2

Admission of new members

Meetings of the Council

9597 (8 April); 9609 (18 April)

Consultations of the whole

8 April

Draft resolutions not adopted

S/2024/312 (A/78/856)

Communications

S/2024/283	2 April	Identical letters from representatives of
		Mauritania, Saudi Arabia and Uganda to
		the Secretary-General, the President of the
		General Assembly and the President of the
		Security Council

S/2024/313 16 April Letter from the Chair of the Committee on

the admission of new members addressed to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 3

Items relating to Security Council documentation and working methods and procedure

A. Implementation of note by the President of the Security Council (\$/2017/507)

Meetings of the Council

9571 (11 March)

24-17684 **173/210**

Consultations of the whole

11 January; 27 March; 12 September; 20 September

Communications

S/2024/208	1 March	Letter from the representative of Japan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/228	11 March	Letter from the representatives of New Zealand and Norway to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/551	15 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/596	6 August	Letter from the representative of Japan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/645	30 August	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/710	1 October	Letter from the representative of Switzerland to the Secretary-General
S/2024/722	8 October	Letter from the representative of Finland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/507	13 December	Note by the President of the Security Council
S/2024/970	26 December	Letter from the Chair of the Informal Working Group on Documentation and Other Procedural Questions to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/998	30 December	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the President of the Security Council

B. General matters

Communications

S/2024/1	1 January	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/3	1 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/8	2 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/15	3 January	Letter from the representative of Georgia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/17	3 January	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/19	4 January	Letter from the representative of Tunisia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/51	10 January	Letter from the representative of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northen Ireland to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/58	12 January	Letter from the representative of Cuba to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/63	15 January	Letter from the representative of Egypt to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/119	30 January	Letter from the Chair of the Military Staff Committee to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/893	9 December	Letter from the Chair of the Military Staff Committee to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 175/210

Part IV Report of the Military Staff Committee

The report of the Military Staff Committee for 2024 has been issued as document S/2024/928/Rev.1, as agreed by the Committee.

24-17684 177/210

Part V Matters brought to the attention of the Security Council but not discussed at meetings of the Council during the period covered

Chapter 1

Communications concerning the India-Pakistan question

S/2024/1	1 January	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/133	5 February	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/350	26 April	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/571	5 August	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/780	27 October	Letter from the representative of Pakistan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/819	8 November	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/820	13 November	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Chapter 2

Communications concerning the question of the Greater Tunb, Lesser Tunb and Abu Musa islands

S/2024/8	2 January	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/375	9 May	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 3

The situation between Iraq and Kuwait

Reports of the Secretary-General

Symbol	Date submitted	Pursuant to
S/2024/95	25 January	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2024/368	7 May	Resolution 2107 (2013)
S/2024/844	24 November	Resolutions 2107 (2013) and 2732 (2024)

24-17684 **179/210**

Communications		
S/2024/23	4 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/131	2 February	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/249	20 March	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/294	5 April	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/459	11 June	Identical letters from the representative of Kuwait to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning the situation relating to the letter dated 13 September 2022 from the Permanent Representative of Armenia to the United Nations addressed to the President of the Security Council (S/2022/688)

S/2024/164	13 February	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2024/171	16 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/184	21 February	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/194	27 February	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2024/241	15 March	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/289	4 April	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/358	2 May	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/360	3 May	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/456	10 June	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General

S/2024/489	21 June	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2024/687	19 September	Letter from the representative of Armenia to the Secretary-General
S/2024/714	1 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/744	14 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/754	16 October	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/808	8 November	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/908	12 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/982	27 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/986	27 December	Letter from the representative of Azerbaijan to the Secretary-General

Communications concerning the situation in Georgia

S/2024/15	3 January	Letter from the representative of Georgia to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/245	18 March	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/454	10 June	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/488	20 June	Identical letters from the representative of Georgia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Chapter 6

Communications concerning relations between Cameroon and Nigeria

S/2024/42	15 December 2023	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/43	9 January	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

24-17684 181/210

Communications concerning the situation in Sierra Leone

S/2024/627	19 August	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/628	22 August	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Chapter 8

Communications concerning the situation in Guinea-Bissau

S/2024/936	17 December	Letter from the Chair of the Security
		Council Committee established pursuant
		to resolution 2048 (2012) concerning
		Guinea-Bissau to the President of the
		Security Council

Chapter 9

Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)

S/2024/319	18 April	Thirty-ninth semi-annual report on the Implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)
S/2024/723	9 October	Fortieth semi-annual report on the Implementation of Security Council resolution 1559 (2004)

Chapter 10

Communications concerning the situation in Mali

S/2024/105	26 January	Letter from the representative of Algeria to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/98	25 January	Letter from the representative of Mali to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/357	1 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/562	18 July	Letter from the President of the Security Council to the Secretary-General

Chapter 11

Communications concerning the International Criminal Court

S/2024/191	23 February	Letter from the representatives of Japan
		and Switzerland to the President of the
		Security Council

S/2024/999

31 December Letter from the representatives of Japan and Switzerland to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 12

Communications concerning the Collective Security Treaty Organization

S/2024/553	12 July	Letter from the representative of
		Kazakhstan to the Secretary-General and
		the President of the General Assembly

Chapter 13

Communications concerning the League of Arab States

S/2024/57	12 January	Identical letters from the representative of Bahrain to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/97	26 January	Identical letters from the representative of Morocco to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/205	1 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/397/Rev.1	20 May	Letter from the representative of Bahrain to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/529	5 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

Chapter 14

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Israel

S/2024/11	2 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/33	8 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/89	22 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General

24-17684 183/210

S/2024/167	15 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/221	7 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/281	1 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/296	5 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/304	13 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/305	13 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/324	19 April	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/349	30 April	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/366	7 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/452	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/582	30 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/584	31 July	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/684	18 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

S/202	24/701	28 September	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/712	1 October	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/713	1 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/721	8 October	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/734	11 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/755	17 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/769	24 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/779	26 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/825	14 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/837	18 November	Identical letters from the representative of Israel to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/840	18 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/845	21 November	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/202	24/965	24 December	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 185/210

S/2024/993	30 December	Letter from the representative of the
		Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-
		General and the President of the Security
		Council

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and Iraq

S/2024/3	1 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/76	16 January	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/97	26 January	Identical letters from the representative of Morocco to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/560	18 July	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/565	23 July	Identical letters from the representative of Iraq to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/613	13 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 16

Communications concerning relations between the Islamic Republic of Iran and the United States of America

S/2024/4	2 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/9	2 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/33	8 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/64	15 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council

S/2024/101	26 January	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/110	29 January	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/135	5 February	Letter from the representative of the United States of America to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/163	6 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/175	19 February	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/244	18 March	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/389	15 May	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/483	19 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/608	12 August	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/760	21 October	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/840	18 November	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/805	5 November	Identical letters from the observer of the State of Palestine to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council

24-17684 187/210

Communications concerning relations between Cuba and the United States of America

S/2024/401 22 May Letter from the representative of Cuba to

the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the

Security Council

Chapter 18

Communications concerning relations between Guyana and the Bolivarian Republic of Venezuela

S/2024/295 5 April Letter from the representative of Guyana to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 19

Communications concerning the International Court of Justice

S/2024/116	26 January	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/182	20 February	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the Security Council
S/2024/183	21 February	Letter from the representative of Ukraine to the Secretary-General
S/2024/411	25 May	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/419	29 May	Letter from the representative of South Africa to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/452	10 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/549	1 April	Letter from the Secretary-General to the President of the Security Council

Chapter 20

Communications concerning relations between Ethiopia and **Somalia**

S/2024/35 9 January Letter from the representative of

Mauritania to the President of the Security

Council

S	/2024/57	12 January	Identical letters from the representative of Bahrain to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/82	23 January	Letter from the representative of Djibouti to the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/102	26 January	Letter from the representative of Ethiopia to the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/109	29 January	Identical letters from the representative of Somalia to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council
S	/2024/97	26 January	Identical letters from the representative of Morocco to the Secretary-General and the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning relations between the Sudan and the United Arab Emirates

S/2024/276	28 March	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/326	21 April	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/336	25 April	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/345	26 April	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/362	6 May	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/510	26 June	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/670	10 September	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/690	21 September	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council

24-17684 189/210

S/2024/733	11 October	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/809	8 November	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the Secretary- General
S/2024/831	15 November	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the Secretary-General
S/2024/843	20 November	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/904	11 December	Letter from the representative of the Sudan to the President of the Security Council
S/2024/988	28 December	Letter from the representative of the United Arab Emirates to the President of the Security Council

Communications concerning bilateral relations

S/2024/436	4 June	Letter from the representatives of China and the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General
S/2024/511	26 June	Letter from the representative of the Islamic Republic of Iran to the Secretary-General
S/2024/541	10 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General and the President of the General Assembly
S/2024/681	13 September	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General
S/2024/563	22 July	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary- General

Chapter 23

Communications concerning the Commonwealth of Independent States

S/2024/758	18 October	Letter from the representative of the Russian Federation to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the Security Council
		Security Council

Communications concerning BRICS

S/2024/771 24 October Letter from the representative of the

Russian Federation to the Secretary-General, the President of the General Assembly and the President of the

Security Council

24-17684 191/210

Appendices

I Membership of the Security Council during the year 2024

Algeria

China

Ecuador

France

Guyana

Japan

Malta

Mozambique

Republic of Korea

Russian Federation

Sierra Leone

Slovenia

Switzerland

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

United States of America

II Representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives accredited to the Security Council

The following representatives and deputy, alternate and acting representatives served on the Security Council during the period from 1 January to 31 December 2024:

Algeria**

Mr. Ahmed Attaf1

(Minister for Foreign Affairs and the National Community Abroad)

Mr. Lounes Magramane²

(Secretary General of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and National

Community Abroad)

Mr. Youcef Cherfa³

(Minister of Agriculture and Rural Development)

Ms. Kaouter Krikou⁴

(Minister of Solidarity, Family and the Status of Women)

Mr. Amar Bendjama

Mr. Nacim Gaouaoui

Mr. Toufik Laid Koudri

Mr. Dahmane Yahiaoui

Mr. Nader Louafi

Mr. Mohamed Faiz Bouchedoub

Mr. Abdelkarim Hamiane

Mr. Ahmed Sahraoui

Mr. Mohamed-Esseghir Latrous

Ms. Rahma Samai

Mr. Ismaïl Merabet

Ms. Farida Azzi

Mr. Mohammed Walid Alem

Mr. Larbi Abdelfattah Lebbaz

Mr. Billel Hassani

Mr. Hakim Gadouri

Mr. Mehdi Remaoun

Mrs. Nawel Remaoun Noureddine

Mr. Mohamed Reda Benzide

Mr. Medjd Eddine Samir Boussahel

Ms. Nour El Houda Lahouati

24-17684 193/210

^{*} Term of office ended on 31 December 2024.

^{**} Term of office began on 1 January 2024.

Ms. Yousra Sellidj

Mrs. Asma Youssra Sarra Drioueche

Mrs. Soumia Ramdoum

Ms. Amina Gasmi

Ms. Zidi Thiziri

Mrs. Manel Messaoud

Mr. Mahdi Benazouaou

China

Mr. Wang Yi⁵

(Member of the Political Bureau of the Communist Party of China Central Committee and Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Ms. Huang Xiaowei⁶

(Minister and Deputy Head of the National Working Committee on Children and Women of the State Council)

Mr. Fu Cong

Mr. Zhang Jun

Mr. Dai Bing

Mr. Geng Shuang

Mr. Sun Zhiqiang

Mr. Wu Jianjian

Mr. Liang Hengzhu

Ms. Jiang Hua

Mr. Xing Jisheng

Mr. Han Kangmin

Ms. Gui Dan

Mr. Gong Cheng

Ms. Zhang Sisi

Ms. Cao Liwen

Mr. Long Qi

Ms. Wang Yingtong

Mr. He Siyang

Mr. Tian Bingxu

Mr. Yao Jialiang

Mr. Xu Yuanzhou

Mr. Li Nan

Mr. Niu Xiaoqiang

Ms. Hang Su

- Mr. He Zhiqiang
- Mr. Gu Wenlong
- Mr. Zhao Shuai
- Ms. Xu Hui
- Mr. Jie Lin
- Mr. Zheng Minghao
- Mr. Youyi Zhuang
- Mr. Li Xiang
- Ms. Zhu Jiani
- Mr. Chen Yongchao
- Mr. Lei Zhao
- Mr. He Mao
- Mr. Li Linlin

Ecuador*

- Ms. Gabriela Sommerfeld Rosero⁷
- (Minister for Foreign Affairs and Human Mobility)
- Ms. Arianna Tanca⁸
- (Minister of Women and Human Right Affairs)
- Mr. Jaime Barberis⁹
- (Vice-Minister for Foreign Affairs)
- Mr. José Javier De La Gasca
- Mr. Andrés Efren Montalvo Sosa
- Ms. Mónica Soledad Sánchez Izquierdo
- Ms. Irina Alexandra Barba Bustos
- Mr. Pablo Agustín Escobar Ullauri
- Mr. Andrés Fernando Piedra Calderón
- Mr. Miguel Alexander Egas Benavides
- Mr. Marcel Gross Pozo
- Ms. Elizabeth Noralma Méndez Gruezo
- Mr. Teodoro Santiago Durán Medina
- Ms. Sofia Belen Osorno Holguin
- Mr. Wilson Leonardo Rojas Jacome

France

- Mr. Jean-Noël Barrot¹⁰
- (Minister for Europe and European Affairs)
- Mr. Stéphane Séjourné¹¹
- (Minister for Europe and European Affairs)
- Mr. Nicolas de Rivière

Mr. Jay Dharmadhikari

Mrs. Isis Marie Doriane Jaraud-Darnault

Mrs. Elisabeth Rose Marie Meyer

Mr. Olivier-Gabriel Richard

Mr. Sylvain Marie Emile Fournel

Mr. Hugo Pierre Julius Wavrin

Mr. Mohammed El Fatah Badr

Mrs. Lisa Isabelle Segovia

Mr. Raphaël Ollivier Mrejen

Mrs. Leila Yasmina Morghad

Ms. Anne Catherine Hélène Freudenreich

Mr. Emmanuel Jacques Leclerc

Mr. Julien Vandriessche

Guyana*

Mr. Mohamed Irfaan Ali¹²

(President)

Mr. Hugh H. Todd¹³

(Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation)

Ms. Vindhya Persaud¹⁴

(Minister of Human Services and Social Security)

Mr. Robert Persaud¹⁵

(Foreign Secretary and High Representative for United Nations Security Council Affairs)

Mr. George Talbot16

(Director of the Department of Multilateral and Global Affairs, and Ambassador to the Caribbean Community (CARICOM))

Mrs. Carolyn Rodrigues-Birkett

Ms. Trishala Simantini Persaud

Ms. Neishanta Annastacia Orissa Benn

Mrs. Marissa Audra Faith Edwards

Ms. Tash Van Doimen

Mr. Sven Orion Michael Douglas

Ms. Texine Wonda Daw

Mrs. Jévanah Raydon La Rose

Ms. Stephanie Ayse Savory

Mr. Royston Alkins

Ms. Sosheena Foranda Parmanand

Ms. Abosede Hazlewood

Japan*

Ms. Kamikawa Yoko¹⁷

(Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Tsuji Kiyoto¹⁸

(State Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Fujii Hisayuki¹⁹

(State Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Hosaka Yasushi²⁰

(Parliamentary Vice-Minister for Foreign Affairs

Mr. Akahori Takeshi²¹

(Senior Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Shimizu Shinsuke²²

(Ambassador for the Tokyo International Conference on African Development; Special Envoy for the Horn of Africa; Special Envoy for United Nations Security Council Reform and Security Council Election Affairs; and Ambassador for International Economic Affairs, Ministry of Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Uemura Tsukasa²³

(Special Envoy for the Middle East Peace)

Mr. Ando Toshihide²⁴

(Assistant Minister (Ambassador) and Director General, Middle Eastern and African Bureau, Ministry of Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Kanai Masaaki

(Legal Adviser, Assistant Minister, Director General, International Legal Affairs Bureau, Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Japan)

Ms. Kaji Misako²⁵

(Ambassador for Science and Technology Cooperation, Special Assistant to the Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Yamazaki Kazuyuki

Mr. Ishikane Kimihiro

Mrs. Shino Mitsuko

Mr. Yamanaka Osamu

Mr. Hamamoto Yukiya

Mr. Magosaki Kaoru

Mr. Tamaura Shu

Mr. Suzuki Yukio

Mr. Nagano Shunsuke

Mr. Miyamoto Sogaku

Mr. Nakagawa Shu

Mr. Murata Hidemasa

Mr. Kitada Tetsuo

Mr. Iriya Takayuki

Mr. Ono Sho

- Mr. Nishigori Naofumi
- Mr. Nishiyama Akira
- Mr. Shoji Takashi
- Mr. Tonai Akihiro
- Mr. Suzuki Takahiro
- Mr. Mikanagi Tomohiro
- Mr. Umetsu Shigeru
- Mr. Mori Takayoshi
- Mr. Yoshino Kohei
- Mr. Sorimachi Masayuki
- Ms. Horiba Chizuru
- Mr. Kawasaki Masaki

Malta*

- Mr. Robert Abela²⁶
- (Prime Minister)
- Mr. Chris Fearne²⁷
- (Deputy Prime Minister)
- Mr. Ian Borg²⁸
- (Minister for Foreign and European Affairs and Trade)
- Mrs. Vanessa Frazier
- Ms. Francesca Maria Gatt
- Mr. Adam Kuymizakis
- Mr. Darren Camilleri
- Mr. Andrea De Bono Sant Cassia
- Mr. Mark Ciscaldi
- Mr. George Grech
- Ms. Fleur Abela
- Ms. Justine Micallef
- Ms. Francesca Cassar
- Ms. Kristy Bartolo
- Mr. Andrew John Azzopardi
- Ms. Carla Galea
- Mr. Blaine Camilleri
- Mr. Ciarán Finlay

Mozambique*

Ms. Verónica Nataniel Macamo Dlhovo²⁹

(Minister for Foreign Affairs and Cooperation)

Mr. Manuel José Gonçalves³⁰

(Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs and Cooperation)

Mr. Pedro Comissário Afonso

Mr. Domingos Estêvão Fernandes

Mr. Martins Mariano Kumanga

Mr. Tarcísio Baltazar Buanahagi

Mr. António Mapua Bambissa

Mr. Eufrásio José Maria Irachande Gouveia

Mr. Bruno Bernardo Serage

Republic of Korea**

Mr. Cho Tae-yul³¹

(Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Hwang Joonkook

Mr. Kim Sangjin

Mr. Cho Hyunwoo

Mr. Park June Byoung

Ms. Song Hyeryoung

Mr. Choi Taeeun

Mr. Kim Sunghoon

Mr. Kim Hyunsoo

Mr. Kim Dongjoon

Mr. Hwang Won

Mr. Hong Sunghun

Ms. Lee Yeseung

Ms. Park Jeewon

Mr. Kim Jaeseob

Ms. Lee Hyun Goo

Ms. Jung Eunhye

Mr. Lee Jongchan

Mr. Oh Yuchan

Ms. Hong Ahran

Mr. Sohn Kwangdeuk

Ms. Tak Minsoo

Lieutenant Colonel Yoo Hyunki

24-17684

Major Park Juhoon

Lee Sun Min

Lee Jieun

Russian Federation

Mr. Sergey Lavrov³²

(Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Sergey Vershinin³³

(Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Vassily A. Nebenzia

Mr. Dmitry A. Polyanskiy

Mr. Dmitry S. Chumakov

Ms. Anna M. Evstigneeva

Ms. Maria Zabolotskaya

Ms. Dina A. Gilmutdinova

Mr. Oleg O. Mikhailov

Mr. Nikolay V. Khloponin

Mr. Boris A. Meshchanov

Ms. Nadezhda V. Sokolova

Mr. Evgeny A. Skachkov

Mr. Stanislav M. Suprunenko

Mr. Sergey S. Ermakov

Mr. Georgy A. Barsukov

Mr. Alexander S. Proskuryakov

Ms. Gloriya A. Agaronova

Mr. Igor Chibisov

Mr. Sergei A. Leonidchenko

Mr. Aleksandr V. Terekhov

Mr. Dmitry Glukhov

Mr. Egor Shulgin

Mr. Sergey Eremin

Ms. Ekaterina Noskova

Mr. Rodion Grudinskiy

Mr. Sergey Kondratev

Mr. Roman Kashaev

Mr. Dmitry V. Vorobiev

Mr. Sergei Dergachev

Mr. Ilia A. Andreev

Mr. Dmitry N. Tretiakov

Mr. Nikolai O. Komarkov

Mr. Vadim N. Laputin

Mr. Nikita V. Andrianov

Mrs. Viktoriia Mazaeva

Mr. Dmitry S. Aristov

Mr. Pavel Fondukov

Mr. Evgeny E. Uspenskiy

Mr. Vladislav V. Balakin

Mrs. Svetlana Dmitrieva

Sierra Leone**

Mr. Julius Maada Bio³⁴

(President)

Mr. David Moinina Sengeh³⁵

(Chief Minister)

Mr. Timothy Kabba³⁶

(Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation)

Ms. Francess Piagie Alghali³⁷

(Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation)

Mr. Michael Imran Kanu

Mr. Mohamed Amara Sowa

Mr. Alan Ebun George

Mr. Idriss Samaguty Tejan

Mr. Abass Salieu Kamara

Mr. Christian Fayia Yajah

Ms. Karen Jean Baimarro

Ms. Finda Senesi

Ms. Aminata Sidique

Ms. Hawanatu Kebe

Mr. Philip Desmond Scotland

Ms. Sonia Umu Karim

Mrs. Lanla Fatma Kamara-Joyner

Mr. Shaekou Allieu

Mr. Mohamed Kanja Sesay

Brigadier General Sahid Tejan Kanu

Ms. Ebunoluwa Finda Amanda Tengbe

Mr. Allieu Vandi Koroma

Colonel Philip Schenks

Colonel Richard Saidu Bockarie

Ms. Onike Christine Spencer-Coker

Mr. George Shadrack Kamanda

Ms. Estella Sia Yomba Mambu

Mr. Isaac Sheku Bayoh

Ms. Agnes Bio

Slovenia**

Mr. Robert Golob³⁸

(Prime Minister)

Ms. Tanja Fajon³⁹

(Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Foreign and European Affairs)

Ms. Sanja Štiglic⁴⁰

(Deputy Minister of Foreign and European Affairs)

Ms. Melita Gabrič⁴¹

(Deputy Minister of Foreign and European Affairs)

Mr. Marko Štucin⁴²

(State Secretary of the Ministry of Foreign and European Affairs)

Ms. Renata Cvelbar Bek⁴³

(Secretary-General of the Ministry of Foreign and European Affairs)

Ms. Darja Bavdaž Kuret⁴⁴

(Special Envoy on Women, Peace and Security)

Mr. Samuel Žbogar

Mrs. Ondina Blokar Drobič

Ms. Saša Jurečko

Mr. Klemen Ponikvar

Mrs. Špela Košir

Ms. Tjaša Tanko

Mr. Blaž Slamič

Mrs. Urša Ponikvar

Ms. Lidija Dravec

Ms. Urška Učakar

Mr. Gregor Jenko

Ms. Niamh Kelly

Ms. Sabina Carli Sitar

Switzerland*

Ms. Viola Amherd⁴⁵

(President)

Mr. Ignazio Cassis⁴⁶

(Federal Councillor and Head of the Federal Department of Foreign Affairs)

Mr. Thomas Gürber (State Secretary)

Ms. Alexandra Baumann⁴⁷

(State Secretary)

Mr. Wolfgang Amadeus Brülhart⁴⁸ (Special Envoy on the Middle East)

Mrs. Pascale Christine Baeriswyl

Mr. Adrian Dominik Hauri

Mrs. Riccarda Christiana Chanda

Mrs. Andrea Barbara Baumann-Bresolin

Mr. Christoph David Carpenter

Mr. Vincent Choffat

Mr. Pierre Gobet

Ms. Céline Glutz

Mrs. Rahel Pema

Mr. Cyril Gabriel Teiva Prissette

Mr. Marc-Alain Stritt

Ms. Valérie Chiara Wagner

United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

Sir Keir Starmer⁴⁹

(Member of Parliament, Prime Minister and First Lord of Treasury)

Mr. David Lammy⁵⁰

(Member of Parliament, Secretary of State for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Affairs)

Lord David Cameron⁵¹

(Secretary of State for Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Affairs)

Lord Tariq Ahmad of Wimbledon⁵²

(Minister of State in the Foreign, Commonwealth Development Office)

Lord Ray Collins of Highbury⁵³

(Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State of the Foreign, Commonwealth and Development Office)

Lord Richard Simon Hermer⁵⁴

(Attorney General for England and Wales and Advocate General for Northern Ireland)

Ms. Barbara Woodward

Mr. James Kariuki

Mr. Fergus John Eckersley

Mr. Thomas Rathmell Woodroffe

Ms. Tara Soomro

Mr. Colin McIntyre

Colonel Carl Christian Harris

24-17684

- Mr. Mungo Woodifield
- Mr. Thomas Patrick Phipps
- Ms. Laura Gabrielle Dix
- Ms. Jessica Kay Jambert-Gray
- Ms. Katherine Sarah Jones
- Mr. Thomas Mark Gregory
- Mr. Patrick James Coyle
- Mr. James Robert Warner
- Mr. Sacha James Kumaria
- Ms. Grace Louise Wood
- Ms. Shadi Fathizadeh
- Mr. Andrew Philip Sigley
- Mr. Stacy John Weld-Blundell
- Ms. Asima Ghazi-Bouillon
- Ms. Emma Zahedi
- Mr. James Rogers
- Mr. Phelim Brady
- Ms. Mariea Sekijima
- Mr. Philip Christopher Beer
- Ms. Charlotte Andrews
- Mr. Jonathan Samuel Hollis
- Ms. Hannah Zainuddin
- Lieutenant Colonel Mark Howard
- Lieutenant Colonel John Murdo MacLeod
- Ms. Naomi Claire Holyfield
- Ms. Elizabeth Louise Page
- Ms. Olivia O'Malley
- Mr. Nicholas John Fidoe
- Ms. Rebecca Mae Alldridge
- Mr. James George Pulay Gibbon
- Mr. Benjamin Aaron Kriss
- Ms. Matilda Lucy Silvestro
- Mr. Joel Clark
- Ms. Shana Kandola
- Ms. Phoebe Meyrick
- Ms. Rebecca Viney
- Mr. Alexander Simon Horne

- Mr. Andrew Pickens
- Ms. Shauna Louise Crombie
- Ms. Emma Nelmes
- Ms. Isabelle Fern Moore
- Ms. Kasia Jakimowicz
- Ms. Megan White
- Mr. Siddharth Shankar
- Mr. Timothy James Sylvester
- Ms. Sandra Xheleshi
- Ms. Alexandra Jane Berelowitz
- Ms. Danielle Singleton
- Mr. Greg Ross Reisman
- Ms. Anneka Patel
- Ms. Ella Hallums
- Ms. Datcha Byangoy
- Ms. Gaia Reyes
- Ms. Zeinah Salam
- Ms. Karina Bravo

United States of America

Mr. Antony J. Blinken⁵⁵

(Secretary of State)

Ms. Uzra Zeya⁵⁶

(Undersecretary of State for Civilian Security, Democracy and Human Rights)

Mr. Michael S. Regan⁵⁷

(Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency)

- Mrs. Linda Thomas-Greenfield⁵⁸
- Ms. Dorothy Shea
- Mr. Richard M. Mills, Jr.
- Mr. Christopher P. Lu
- Mr. Robert A. Wood
- Mr. Jeffrey DeLaurentis
- Ms. Anne Neuberger
- Ms. Elisabeth Millard
- Mr. Mark A. Simonoff
- Mr. John Kelley
- Ms. Trina Saha
- Ms. Lisa Browne
- Mr. Oscar Baez

24-17684

Ms. Alexandra Brosnan

Ms. Carolyn Strainic

Ms. Andrea Cameron

Mr. Anthony James Diaz

Ms. Alexandra Hoey

Ms. Faith Kroeker-Maus

Ms. Oriana Luquetta

Mr. Caleb Pine

Ms. Therese Postel

Ms. Cyndee-Nga Trinh

Ms. Mary Beth Leonard

Ms. Carolyn Smith

Ms. Lisa A. Carty

Ms. Dina Badawy

Ms. Emily Carter

Mr. Andrew Curiel

Ms. Alana Garellek

Mr. Benjamin Germano

Ms. Elizabeth Maryanne Grosso

Mr. Robert Kris

Ms. Dianna Long

Mr. Jason Park

Ms. Dorothy Patton

Mr. Herbert Pell

Mr. Mark A. Simonoff

Ms. Hsueh-Ting Wu

Mr. Anton Jongeneel

Ms. Jessica Long

Mr. Nicholas Koval

Ms. Stephanie S. Sullivan

Mr. Richard Carl Paschall III

Notes

- ¹ Participated in the 9534th, 9606th, 9607th, 9608th, 9731st, 9732nd, 9733rd and 9734th meetings, on 23 January, 17 and 18 April, 24, 25 and 27 September 2024.
- ² Participated in the 9702nd meeting, on 12 August 2024.
- ³ Participated in the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- ⁴ Participated at the 9574th meeting, on 13 March 2024.
- ⁵ Participated at the 9731st, 9732nd and 9734th meetings, on 24, 25 and 27 September 2024.
- ⁶ Participated at the 9574th meeting, on 13 March 2024.
- ⁷ Participated at the 9821st meeting, on 19 December 2024.
- ⁸ Participated at the 9574th meeting, on 13 March 2024.
- ⁹ Participated at the 9731st and 9732nd meetings, on 24 and 25 September 2024.
- ¹⁰ Participated at the 9731st, 9732nd and 9733rd meetings, on 24 and 25 September 2024.
- ¹¹ Presided at the 9534th meeting, on 23 January 2024, and participated at the 9557th meeting, on 23 February 2024.
- ¹² Presided at the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- ¹³ Participated in the 9731st, 9732nd, 9734th and 9763rd meetings, on 23 January, 24, 25 and 27 September and 29 October 2024 and presided at the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- ¹⁴ Participated in the 9574th meeting, on 13 March 2024.
- ¹⁵ Participated in the 9662nd meeting, on 20 June 2024.
- ¹⁶ Participated in the 9686th meeting, on 16 July 2024.
- ¹⁷ Presided at the 9579th meeting, on 18 March 2024.
- ¹⁸ Participated in the 9557th meeting, on 23 February 2024.
- ¹⁹ Participated in the 9786th, 9787th and 9788th meetings, on 18 November 2024.
- ²⁰ Participated in the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- ²¹ Participated in the 9731st and 9732nd meetings, on 24 and 25 September 2024.
- ²² Participated in the 9702nd meeting, on 12 August 2024.
- ²³ Participated in the 9534th, 9607th and 9608th meetings, on 23 January, 17 and 18 April 2024.
- ²⁴ Participated in the 9733rd meeting, on 27 September 2024.
- ²⁵ Participated in the 9753rd meeting, on 21 October 2024.
- ²⁶ Participated in the 9732nd meeting, on 25 September 2024.
- ²⁷ Presided at the 9614th meeting, on 23 April 2024.
- Presided at the 9606th, 9607th and 9608th meetings, on 17 and 18 April 2024 and participated in the 9731st meeting, on 24 September 2024.
- ²⁹ Participated in the 9579th and 9821st meetings, on 18 March and 19 December 2024 and presided at the 9637th meeting on 28 May 2024.
- Participated in the 9731st, 9732nd and 9734th meetings, on24, 25 and 27 September.
- ³¹ Participated in the 9557th, 9731st and 9732nd meetings, on 23 February, 24 and 25 September 2024 and presided at the 9662nd meeting, on 20 June 2024.
- ³² Participated in the 9533rd, 9534th and 9734th meetings, on 22 and 23 January and 27 September 2024 and presided at the 9686th and 9687th meetings, on 16 and 17 July 2024.
- ³³ Presided at the 9688th meeting, on 19 July 2024.
- ³⁴ Presided at the 9702nd meeting, on 12 August 2024.
- ³⁵ Participated in the 9534th meeting, on 23 January 2024.
- ³⁶ Participated in the 9608th, 9731st and 9732nd meetings, on 18 April, 24 and 25 September 2024, and presided at the 9710th meeting, on 21 August 2024.
- ³⁷ Participated in the 9574th and 9579th meeting, on 13 and 18 March 2024 and presided at the 9700th meeting, on 7 August 2024.
- ³⁸ Presided at the 9731st, 9732nd and 9734th meetings, on 24, 25 and 27 September 2024.
- ³⁹ Participated in the 9534th and 9557th meetings, on 23 January and 23 February 2024 and presided at the 9726th, 9728th and 9733rd meetings, on 18, 19 and 27 September 2024.
- ⁴⁰ Participated in the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- ⁴¹ Participated in the 9760th meeting, on 24 October 2024.
- ⁴² Participated in the 9626th meeting, on 15 May 2024.
- ⁴³ Participated in the 9606th and 9608th meetings, on 17 and 18 April 2024.
- ⁴⁴ Participated in the 9797th meeting, on 3 December 2024.
- ⁴⁵ Participated in the 9732nd meeting, on 25 September 2024, and presided at the 9760th meeting, on 24 October 2024.
- ⁴⁶ Participated in the 9534th, 9557th, 9686th and 9731st meetings, on 23 January, 23 February, 16 July and 24 September 2024, and presided at the 9763rd meeting, on 29 October 2024.
- ⁴⁷ Participated in the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- ⁴⁸ Participated in the 9687th meeting, on 17 July 2024.
- ⁴⁹ Participated in the 9732nd meeting, on 25 September 2024.

24-17684

- ⁵⁰ Participated in the 9731st and 9733rd meetings, on 24 and 27 September 2024.
- ⁵¹ Participated in the 9557th meeting, on 23 February 2024.
- ⁵² Participated in the 9534th and 9572nd meetings, on 23 January and 11 March 2024.
- ⁵³ Participated in the 9702nd and 9734th meetings, on 12 August and 27 September 2024.
- ⁵⁴ Participated in the 9760th meeting, on 24 October 2024.
- ⁵⁵ Participated in the 9731st meeting, on 24 September 2024 and presided at the 9821st and 9822nd meetings, on 19 December 2024.
- ⁵⁶ Participated in the 9534th meeting, on 23 January 2024.
- ⁵⁷ Participated in the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.
- Participated in the 9557th, 9702nd, 9574th, 9579th, 9662nd, 9702nd, 9732nd and 9760th and 9763rd meetings, on 23 February, 13 and 18 March, 20 June, 12 August, 25 September and 24 and 29 October 2024, in her capacity as Permanent Representative of the United States of America to the United Nations and member of the Cabinet of the President of the United States of America.

III Presidents of the Security Council

The following representatives served as President of the Security Council in 2024.

France Mr. Nicolas de Rivière..... January¹ Guyana February² Japan Malta Mrs. Vanessa Frazier April⁴ Mozambique Republic of Korea Mr. Joonkook Hwang..... June⁶ **Russian Federation** Mr. Vassily A. Nebenzia July⁷ Sierra Leone August⁸ Slovenia Mr. Samuel Žbogar September⁹

24-17684 **209/210**

¹ Mr. Stéphane Séjourné, Minister for Europe and European Affairs of France, presided at the 9534th meeting, on 23 January 2024.

² Mr. Mohamed Irfaan Ali, President of the Republic of Guyana, presided at the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024; and Mr. Hugh H. Todd, Minister of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation, presided at the 9547th meeting, on 13 February 2024.

³ Ms. Kamikawa Yoko, Minister for Foreign Affairs of Japan, presided at the 9579th meeting, on 18 March 2024.

⁴ Mr. Ian Borg, Minister for Foreign and European Affairs and Trade, presided at the 9606th meeting, on 17 April 2024.

Ms. Verónica Nataniel Macamo Dlhovo, Minister of Foreign Affairs and Cooperation, presided at the 9637th meeting, on 28 May 2024; and Mr. Manuel Gonçalves, Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs and Cooperation, presided at the 9637th meeting, on 28 May 2024.

⁶ Mr. Cho Tae-yul, Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Republic of Korea, presided at the 9662nd meeting, on 20 June 2024.

Mr. Sergey Lavrov, Minister for Foreign Affairs of the Russian Federation, presided at the 9686th and 9687th meetings, on 16 and 17 July 2024; and Mr. Sergey Vershinin, Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs, presided at the 9688th meeting, on 19 July 2024.

⁸ Mr. Julius Maada Bio, President of the Republic of Sierra Leone, presided at the 9702nd meeting, on 12 August 2024; and Mr. Musa Timothy Kabba, Minister for Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation, presided at the 9710th meeting, on 21 August 2024.

⁹ Mr. Robert Golob, Prime Minister of the Republic of Slovenia, presided at the 9731st, 9732nd and 9734th meetings, on 24, 25 and 27 September 2024; and Ms. Tajan Fajon, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Foreign and European Affairs, presided at the 9726th, 9728th and 9733rd meetings, on 18, 19 and 27 September 2024.

Switzerland Mrs. Pascale Christine Baeriswyl . October 10 United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland Dame Barbara Woodward . November United States of America Mrs. Linda Thomas-Greenfield . December 11

24-17684 (E) 040625

Ms. Viola Amherd, President of the Swiss Confederation, presided at the 9760th meeting, on 24 October 2024; and Mr. Ignazio Cassis, Federal Councillor and Head of the Federal Department of Foreign Affairs, presided at the 9763rd meeting, on 29 October 2024.

¹¹ Mr. Antony J. Blinken, Secretary of State of the United States of America, presided at the 9821st and 9822nd meetings, on 19 December 2024.